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CHIMERA  INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

September 30, 2012
(Unaudited)

December 31,
2011 (1)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 458,107 $ 206,299
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair value
  Senior 82 1,020
  Senior interest-only 128,868 188,679
  Subordinated 509,061 606,895
  Subordinated interest-only 16,867 22,019
Agency RMBS, at fair value 1,997,211 3,144,531
Accrued interest receivable 17,767 22,709
Other assets 13,319 1,403
  Subtotal 3,141,282 4,193,555
Assets of Consolidated VIEs:
  Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variable interest
entities ("VIEs"), at fair value 3,235,572 3,270,332
  Securitized loans held for investment, net of allowance for loan
losses of $11.3 million and $13.9 million, respectively 1,136,923 256,632
  Accrued interest receivable 25,215 26,616
  Subtotal 4,397,710 3,553,580
Total assets $ 7,538,992 $ 7,747,135

Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($1.7
billion and $2.8 billion pledged as collateral,
respectively) $ 1,658,906 $ 2,672,989
Accrued interest payable 2,434 3,294
Dividends payable 92,416 112,937
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,289 1,687
Investment management fees and expenses
payable to affiliate 11,531 12,958
Interest rate swaps, at fair value 59,073 44,467
  Subtotal 1,825,649 2,848,332
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs
  Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency
RMBS  ($3.2 billion and $3.3 billion
  pledged as collateral, respectively) 1,252,752 1,630,276
  Securitized debt, collateralized by loans held for
investment ($1.2 billion and $238.0 million
  pledged as collateral, respectively) 1,033,925 212,778
  Accrued interest payable 8,477 8,130
  Subtotal 2,295,154 1,851,184
Total liabilities $ 4,120,803 $ 4,699,516

Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 15)
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Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively                                    - -
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share;
1,500,000,000 shares authorized, 1,027,505,028
and 1,027,467,089 shares issued and outstanding,
respectively 10,268 10,267
Additional paid-in-capital 3,604,097 3,603,739
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 852,357 433,453
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (1,048,533 ) (999,840 )
Total stockholders' equity $ 3,418,189 $ 3,047,619
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 7,538,992 $ 7,747,135
(1) Derived from the audited consolidated financial statements.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
(unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
Net Interest Income:
Interest income $ 36,576 $ 68,776 $ 139,926 $ 197,718
Interest expense (2,281 ) (3,149 ) (7,080 ) (9,160 )

Interest income, Assets of
consolidated VIEs 108,120 116,805 315,962 339,765
Interest expense, Non-recourse
liabilities of consolidated VIEs (32,075 ) (29,643 ) (85,604 ) (95,002 )
Net interest income (expense) 110,340 152,789 363,204 433,321
Other-than-temporary
impairments:
Total other-than-temporary
impairment losses (2,713 ) (78,950 ) (47,264 ) (161,924 )
Portion of loss recognized in
other comprehensive income
(loss) (7,301 ) (71,610 ) (76,801 ) (83,989 )
Net other-than-temporary credit
impairment losses (10,014 ) (150,560 ) (124,065 ) (245,913 )

Other gains (losses):
Net unrealized gains (losses) on
interest rate swaps (4,427 ) (25,312 ) (14,607 ) (34,981 )
Net realized gains (losses) on
interest rate swaps (5,298 ) (4,500 ) (14,890 ) (11,644 )
Net gains (losses) on interest
rate swaps (9,725 ) (29,812 ) (29,497 ) (46,625 )
Net unrealized gains (losses) on
interest-only RMBS (15,393 ) (17,600 ) 22 (1,611 )
Net realized gains (losses) on
sales of investments 69,155 58 85,165 1,787
Total other gains (losses) 44,037 (47,354 ) 55,690 (46,449 )
Net investment income (loss) 144,363 (45,125 ) 294,829 140,959

Other expenses:
Management fees 13,051 13,252 38,863 39,154
Expense recoveries
from Manager (1,910 ) - (1,910 ) -
Net Management fees 11,141 13,252 36,953 39,154
Provision for loan losses, net 496 - (396 ) 1,442
General and administrative
expenses 4,658 1,830 9,188 5,137
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Total other expenses 16,295 15,082 45,745 45,733
Income (loss) before income
taxes 128,068 (60,207 ) 249,084 95,226
Income taxes - (171 ) 2 645
Net income (loss) $ 128,068 $ (60,036 ) $ 249,082 $ 94,581

Net income (loss) per share
available to common
shareholders:
Basic $ 0.12 $ (0.06 ) $ 0.24 $ 0.09
Diluted $ 0.12 $ (0.06 ) $ 0.24 $ 0.09

Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding:
Basic 1,026,841,087 1,026,404,030 1,026,804,427 1,026,308,073
Diluted 1,027,505,030 1,027,195,404 1,027,499,973 1,027,130,136

Dividends declared per share of
common stock $ 0.09 $ 0.13 $ 0.29 $ 0.40

Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss) $ 128,068 $ (60,036 ) 249,082 $ 94,581
Other comprehensive income
(loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities, net 260,891 (41,863 ) 380,004 (258,253 )
Reclassification adjustment for
net losses included in net
income (loss) for
other-than-temporary credit
impairment losses 10,014 150,560 124,065 245,913
Reclassification adjustment for
net realized losses (gains)
included in net income (loss) (69,155 ) (58 ) (85,165 ) (1,787 )
Other comprehensive income
(loss) 201,750 108,639 418,904 (14,127 )
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 329,818 $ 48,603 $ 667,986 $ 80,454

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Common
Stock

Par Value

Additional
Paid-

in Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated
Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 2010 $10,261 $3,601,890 $ 680,123 $ (613,688 ) $3,678,586
Net income - - - 94,581 94,581
Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities, net - - (258,253 ) - (258,253 )
Reclassification adjustment for net losses
included in net
  income (loss) for other-than-temporary
credit impairment
  losses - - 245,913 - 245,913
Reclassification adjustment for net
realized losses (gains)
  included in net income (loss) - - (1,787 ) - (1,787 )
Proceeds from direct purchase and
dividend reinvestment 3 783 - - 786
Proceeds from common stock offerings - 7 - - 7
Proceeds from restricted stock grants - 360 - - 360
Common dividends declared, $0.40 per
share - - - (410,544 ) (410,544 )
Balance, September 30, 2011 $10,264 $3,603,040 $ 665,996 $ (929,651 ) $3,349,649

Balance, December 31, 2011 $10,267 $3,603,739 $ 433,453 $ (999,840 ) $3,047,619
Net income - - - 249,082 249,082
Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities, net - - 380,004 - 380,004
Reclassification adjustment for net losses
included in net
  income (loss) for other-than-temporary
credit impairment
  losses - - 124,065 - 124,065
Reclassification adjustment for net
realized losses (gains)
  included in net income (loss) - - (85,165 ) - (85,165 )
Proceeds from direct purchase and
dividend reinvestment 1 116 - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock grants - 242 - - 242
Common dividends declared, $0.29 per
share - - - (297,775 ) (297,775 )
Balance, September 30, 2012 $10,268 $3,604,097 $ 852,357 $ (1,048,533 ) $3,418,189
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousands)

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2012

September 30,
2011

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 249,082 $ 94,581
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
(Accretion) amortization of investment discounts/premiums, net (44,745) (43,420 )
Amortization of deferred financing costs 6,480 1,294
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt discounts/premiums, net 3,469 9,452
Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate swaps 14,607 34,981
Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest-only RMBS (22 ) 1,611
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investments (85,165 ) (1,787 )
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses 124,065 245,913
Provision for loan losses, net (396 ) 1,442
Equity-based compensation expense 242 360
Changes in operating assets:
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable, net 5,459 (6,591 )
Decrease (increase) in other assets 952 790
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities (398 ) 1,190
Increase (decrease) in investment management fees and expenses
payable to affiliate (1,427 ) 995
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable, net (513 ) (103 )
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 271,690 340,708
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
RMBS portfolio:
Purchases (119,429 ) (3,664,513 )
Sales 943,350 670,863
Principal payments 549,478 408,030
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs:
Principal payments 394,641 541,348
Securitized loans held for investment:
Purchases (1,185,664 ) -
Principal payments 297,923 65,347
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 880,299 (1,978,925 )
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from repurchase agreements 5,114,759 12,863,367
Payments on repurchase agreements (6,128,842 ) (10,500,974 )
Net proceeds from common stock offerings - 7
Payment of deferred financing costs (8,073 ) -
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, collateralized by loans
held for investment 1,113,154 -

(292,568 ) (61,054 )
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Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collateralized by loans held
for investment
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, collateralized by
Non-Agency RMBS - 311,012
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collateralized by
Non-Agency RMBS (380,432 ) (520,730 )
Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvestment 117 786
Common dividends paid (318,296 ) (451,546 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (900,181 ) 1,640,868
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 251,808 2,651
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 206,299 7,173
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 458,107 $ 9,824

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest received $ 417,513 $ 485,314
Interest paid $ 89,717 $ 93,952
Taxes paid $ - $ 3
Management fees and expenses paid to affiliate $ 40,290 $ 38,640

Non-cash investing activities:
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-for sale securities $ 418,904 $ (14,127 )

Non-cash financing activities:
Common dividends declared, not yet paid $ 92,416 $ 133,443

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.   Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) was organized in Maryland on June 1, 2007.  The Company
commenced operations on November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial public offering.  The Company elected to
be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and
regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Code").  The Company formed the following wholly-owned qualified REIT
subsidiaries:  Chimera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008; Chimera Asset Holding LLC and Chimera Holding
LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Special Holding LLC in January 2010 which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chimera Asset Holding LLC.  In July 2010, the Company formed CIM Trading Company LLC, a wholly-owned
taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”).

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns approximately 4.38% of the Company’s common shares.  The
Company is managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC”), an investment advisor registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).  FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly.

2.  Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

Restatement

The Company restated its previously issued (i) Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition included in its Annual
Report on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2010 and (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income, Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, including the cumulative effect of the Restatement on Retained
Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) as of the earliest period presented (the “Restatement”) as part of its Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011.  The Restatement also impacted each of the quarters for the periods beginning with
the Company’s inception in November 2007 through the quarter ended September 30, 2011.   The historical interim
periods included in this Form 10-Q reflect the Restatement.

Immaterial Restatement

The Company corrected amounts previously reported in Total other-than-temporary impairments (“OTTI”) losses and
the Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income as the previous presentation was reported on a cumulative basis. The current presentation
reflects only that portion of Total other-than-temporary impairments loss and the Portion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss) that is incremental for the reporting period by giving consideration to both the credit and
portions of OTTI reported in Other comprehensive income (loss) and recognized in prior periods. For the three and
nine month periods ended September 30, 2011, the previously reported Total other-than-temporary impairments losses
of $151.3 million and $293.9 million was reduced by $72.4 million and $132.0 million, respectively.  This change was
fully offset by an adjustment to the previously reported Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income
(loss) of $728 thousand and $48.0 million, respectively.  The corrections had no impact on any previously reported
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses, Net income (loss), Other comprehensive income (loss), Net
income (loss) per share available to common shareholders or Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). In the opinion of
management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation of the Company's financial position, results
of operations and cash flows have been included.  The accompanying unaudited consolidated interim financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

The consolidated financial statements include, on a consolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, the accounts of its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, and variable interest entities (“VIEs”) in which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

5
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VIEs are defined as entities in which equity investors (i) do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest, and/or (ii) do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support from other parties. The entity that consolidates a VIE is known as its primary
beneficiary, and is generally the entity with (i) the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the
VIE’s economic performance, and (ii) the right to receive benefits from the VIE or the obligation to absorb losses of
the VIE that could be significant to the VIE.  For VIEs that do not have substantial on going activities, the power to
direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIEs’ economic performance may be determined by an entity’s
involvement with the design and structure of the VIE.

The Company uses securitization trusts considered to be VIEs in its securitization and re-securitization
transactions.  Prior to January 1, 2010, these VIEs met the definition of Qualified Special Purpose Entities (“QSPE”)
and, as such, were not subject to consolidation by the Company.  Effective January 1, 2010, all such VIEs were
considered for consolidation based on the criteria in ASC 810, Consolidation, resulting in the consolidation of certain
VIEs that were not previously consolidated. Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs are composed
entirely of senior certificates.

(b) Statement of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition separately present: (i) the Company’s direct assets and
liabilities, and (ii) the assets and liabilities of consolidated securitization vehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE
can only be used to satisfy the obligations of that VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs are non-recourse to the
Company.

The Company has aggregated all the assets and liabilities of the consolidated securitization vehicles due to the
determination that these entities are substantively similar and therefore a further disaggregated presentation would not
be more meaningful. The notes to the consolidated financial statements describe the Company’s direct assets and
liabilities and the assets and liabilities of consolidated securitization vehicles.  See Note 8 for additional information
related to the Company’s investments in consolidated securitization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash deposited overnight in money market funds, which are not
bank deposits and are not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. There were no
restrictions on cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) representing interests in obligations backed
by pools of mortgage loans.  The Company delineates between (1) Agency RMBS and (2) Non-Agency RMBS as
follows: Agency RMBS are mortgage pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”), and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligations backed by pools of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by
agencies of the U.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or federally chartered corporations such as Freddie Mac or
Fannie Mae where principal and interest repayments are guaranteed by the respective agency of the U.S. Government
or federally chartered corporation. Non-Agency RMBS are not issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Government Agency or
other institution and are subject to credit risk.  Repayment of principal and interest on Non-Agency RMBS is subject
to the performance of the mortgage loans or RMBS collateralizing the obligation.

The Company classifies its RMBS as available-for-sale, records investments at estimated fair value as described in
Note 5 of these consolidated financial statements, and includes unrealized gains and losses considered to be temporary
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on all RMBS, excluding interest-only strips, in other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income.  Interest-only strips are recorded at estimated fair value and all unrealized
gains and losses are included in earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income.  From time to time, as part of the overall management of its portfolio, the Company may sell any of its
RMBS investments and recognize a realized gain or loss as a component of earnings in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive Income utilizing the average cost method.

The Company’s accounting policy for interest income and impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

6
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Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS securities varies depending on the characteristics of the security as
follows:

Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

ASC 310-20, Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (“ASC 310-20”) is applied to the recognition of interest income for
the following securities:

�     Agency RMBS
�     Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following conditions at the acquisition date (referred to hereafter as

“Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality”):

1.     Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized credit rating agency.  The Company uses the lowest rating
available.

2.     The Company expects to collect all of the security’s contractual cash flows.
3.     The security cannot be contractually prepaid such that the Company would not recover substantially all of its

recorded investment.

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premiums and discounts associated with the acquisition of these
securities, is recognized over the life of such securities using the interest method based on the contractual cash flows
of the security.   In applying the interest method, the Company considers estimates of future principal prepayments in
the calculation of the constant effective yield. Differences that arise between previously anticipated prepayments and
actual prepayments received, as well as changes in future prepayment assumptions, result in a recalculation of the
effective yield on the security on a quarterly basis. This recalculation results in the recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the revised prepayment assumptions and a corresponding increase or
decrease in reported interest income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount and that are not of high credit quality at the time of purchase are
accounted for under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (“ASC 310-30”)
or ASC 325-40, Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets (“ASC 325-40”) (referred to hereafter as
“Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-30 if the following conditions are met as of the acquisition
date:

1.     There is evidence of deterioration in credit quality of the security from its inception.
2.     It is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all contractual cash flows of the security.

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASC 310-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if at the
acquisition date:

1.     The security is not of high credit quality (defined as rated below AA or is unrated), or
2.  The security can contractually be prepaid or otherwise settled in such a way that the Company would not recover

substantially all of its recorded investment.
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Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality is recognized using the interest method based on
management’s estimates of cash flows expected to be collected. The effective interest rate on these securities is based
on management’s estimate for each security of the projected cash flows, which are estimated based on observation of
current market information and include assumptions related to fluctuations in prepayment speeds and the timing and
amount of credit losses. Quarterly, the Company reviews and, if appropriate, makes adjustments to its cash flow
projections based on inputs and analyses received from external sources, internal models, and the Company’s
judgments about prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credit losses, and other factors. Changes in the amount
and/or timing of cash flows from those originally projected, or from those estimated at the last evaluation date, are
considered to be either positive changes or adverse changes. For securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, any
positive or adverse change in cash flows that does not result in the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment
results in a prospective increase or decrease in the effective interest rate used to recognize interest income. For
securities accounted for under ASC 310-30, only significant positive changes are reflected prospectively in the
effective interest rate used to recognize interest income.  Adverse changes in cash flows expected to be collected are
generally treated consistently for RMBS accounted for under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30, and generally result in
recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment with no change in the effective interest rate used to recognize
interest income.

7
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Impairment

Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMBS is less than its amortized cost the security is considered
impaired.  On at least a quarterly basis the Company evaluates its securities for OTTI.  If the Company intends to sell
an impaired security, or it is more-likely-than-not that the Company will be required to sell an impaired security
before its anticipated recovery, then the Company must recognize an OTTI through a charge to earnings equal to the
entire difference between the investment’s amortized cost and its fair value at the measurement date.  If the Company
does not intend to sell an impaired security and it is not more-likely-than-not that it would be required to sell an
impaired security before recovery, the Company must further evaluate the security for impairment due to credit losses.
The credit component of OTTI is recognized in earnings and the remaining or non-credit component is recorded as a
component of OCI. Following the recognition of an OTTI through earnings, a new amortized cost basis is established
for the security and subsequent recoveries in fair value may not be adjusted through earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends to sell an impaired security or will more-likely-than-not be required to
sell an impaired security before recovery, the Company makes judgments that consider among other things, its
liquidity, leverage, contractual obligations, and targeted investment strategy to determine its intent and ability to hold
the investments that are deemed impaired.  The determination as to whether an OTTI exists is subjective as such
determinations are based on factual information available at the time of assessment as well as the Company’s estimates
of future conditions.  As a result, the determination of OTTI, its timing and amount, is based on estimates that may
change materially over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timing of cash flows for its RMBS is based on its review of the underlying
securities or mortgage loans securing the RMBS.  The Company considers historical information available and
expected future performance of the underlying securities or mortgage loans, including timing of expected future cash
flows, prepayment rates, default rates, loss severities, delinquency rates, percentage of non-performing loans, extent of
credit support available, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FICO”) scores at loan origination, year of origination, loan-to-value
ratios, geographic concentrations, as well as reports by credit rating agencies, such as Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.,
Standard & Poor’s Rating Services or Fitch Ratings, Inc., general market assessments and dialogue with market
participants.  As a result, substantial judgment is used in the Company’s analysis to determine the expected cash flows
for its RMBS.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality involves comparing the present value of
the remaining cash flows expected to be collected to the amortized cost of the security at the assessment date.  The
discount rate used to calculate the present value of the expected future cash flows is based on the security’s effective
interest rate as calculated under ASC 310-20 (i.e., the  discount rate implicit in the security as of the last measurement
date).   If the present value of the remaining cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis,
an OTTI is recognized in earnings for the difference. This amount is considered to be the credit loss component; the
remaining difference between amortized cost and the fair value of the security is considered to be the portion of loss
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through earnings for the credit loss component, a new amortized cost basis is
established for the security and subsequent recoveries in fair value may not be adjusted through earnings.

8
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Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30 are considered other-than-temporarily impaired
when the following two conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis, and (2) there has been
an adverse change in cash flows expected to be collected from the last measurement date (i.e., adverse changes in
either the amount or timing of cash flows from those previously expected).

The other-than-temporary impairment is separated into a credit loss component that is recognized in earnings and the
portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). The credit component is comprised of the impact of
the fair value decline due to changes in assumptions related to default (collection) risk and prepayments. The portion
of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) comprises the change in fair value of the security due to all
other factors, including changes in benchmark interest rates and market liquidity.  In determining the OTTI related to
credit losses for securities, the Company compares the present value of the remaining cash flows adjusted for
prepayments expected to be collected at the current financial reporting date to the present value of the remaining cash
flows expected to be collected at the original purchase date (or the last date those estimates were revised for
accounting purposes).  The discount rate used to calculate the present value of expected future cash flows is the
effective interest rate used for income recognition purposes as determined under ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through earnings for the credit component, a new amortized cost basis is
established for the security and subsequent recoveries in fair value may not be adjusted through earnings. However, to
the extent that there are subsequent increases in cash flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previously recorded
through earnings may be accreted into interest income following the guidance in ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists and, if so, the extent of the credit component is subject to significant
judgment and management’s estimates of both historical information available at the time of assessment, the current
market environment, as well as the Company’s estimates of the future performance and projected amount and timing of
cash flows expected to be collected on the security. As a result, the timing and amount of OTTI constitutes an
accounting estimate that may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in interest-only (“IO”) Agency and Non-Agency RMBS. IO RMBS represent the Company’s right
to receive a specified proportion of the contractual interest flows of the collateral. The Company has accounted for IO
RMBS at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income.  The Company has elected the fair value option to account for IO RMBS to simplify the
reporting of changes in fair value.  The IO RMBS are included in RMBS, at fair value, on the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.  Coupon income on IO RMBS is accrued based on the outstanding
notional balance and the security’s contractual terms, and amortization is computed in accordance with ASC 325-40.
Changes in fair value are presented in Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest-only RMBS on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income.  Interest income reported on IO securities was $5.0 million and
$6.2 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  Interest income
reported on IO securities was $18.8 million and $20.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Related Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgage loans are comprised of fixed-rate and variable-rate loans.  Mortgage
loans are designated as held for investment, and are carried at their principal balance outstanding, plus any premiums,
less discounts and allowances for loan losses.  Interest income on loans held for investment is recognized over the
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expected life of the loans using the interest method.  Income recognition is suspended for loans when, based on
information from the servicer, a full recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful.  Income recognition is
resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is demonstrated to be resumed.  The Company
estimates the fair value of securitized loans for disclosure purposes only as described in Note 5 of these consolidated
financial statements.

(g) Allowance for Loan Losses – Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised primarily of non-conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime
loans that are not guaranteed as to repayment of principal or interest.  Securitized loans are serviced and modified by a
third-party servicer.  The Company is not involved in the loan modification process, except as it relates to the CSMC
2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2 securitization vehicles consolidated by the Company that are collateralized by
residential mortgage loans.  As it relates solely to CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2, the Company has the
ability to approve certain loan modifications and determine the course of action to be taken as it relates to loans in
technical default, including whether or not to proceed with foreclosure.

9
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The Company has established an allowance for loan losses related to securitized loans that is composed of a general
and specific reserve. The general reserve relates to loans that have not been individually evaluated for impairment and
is accounted for under ASC 450, Contingencies.  The general reserve is based on historical loss rates for pools of
loans with similar credit characteristics, adjusted for current trends and conditions.

Certain loans are individually evaluated for impairment, including securitized loans modified by the servicer and loans
more than 60 days delinquent under ASC 310, Receivables.  Loan modifications made by the servicer are evaluated to
determine if they constitute troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”).  A restructuring of a loan constitutes a TDR if the
servicer, for economic or legal reasons related to the borrower's financial difficulties, grants a concession to the
borrower that it would not otherwise consider. Impairment of modified loans considered to be TDRs is measured
based on the present value of expected cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate at inception. If the
present value of expected cash flows is less than the recorded investment in the loan, an allowance for loan losses is
recognized with a corresponding charge to provision for loan losses. Impairment of all other loans individually
evaluated is measured as the difference between the unpaid principal balance and the estimated fair value of the
collateral, less estimated costs to sell.  The Company charges off the corresponding loan allowance and related
principal balance when the servicer reports a realized loss. A complete discussion of securitized loans held for
investment is included in Note 4 to these financial statements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a significant portion of its Agency mortgage-backed securities with
repurchase agreements. The Company examines each of the specified criteria in ASC 860, Transfers and Servicing
(“ASC 860”), at the inception of each transaction and has determined that each of the Company’s repurchase agreements
meet the specified criteria in this guidance to be accounted for as secured borrowings. None of the Company’s
repurchase agreements are accounted for as components of linked transactions. As a result, the Company separately
accounts for the financial assets posted as collateral and related repurchase agreements in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred to Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans Held for
Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finance a portion of its residential mortgage loan and RMBS
portfolios.  Certain transactions involving residential mortgage loans are accounted for as secured borrowings, and are
recorded as “Securitized loans held for investment” and the corresponding debt as “Securitized debt, loans held for
investment” in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.  These securitizations are collateralized by
residential adjustable or fixed rate mortgage loans that have been placed in a trust and pay interest and principal to the
debt holders of that securitization.  Re-securitization transactions classified as “Securitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIEs” reflect the transfer to a trust of fixed or adjustable rate RMBS which are classified as
“Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs” that pay interest and principal to the debt holders of that
re-securitization.  Re-securitization transactions completed by the Company that did not qualify as sales are accounted
for as secured borrowings pursuant to ASC 860. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company did not
have any continuing involvement, other than as a passive investor, with any loans or securities previously sold, except
as it relates to the loans in the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2 securitizations as further described
above.  The holders of securitized debt have no recourse to the Company and the Company does not receive any
interest or principal paid on such debt.  As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 the Company recorded $2.3
billion and $1.9 billion in principal on securitized debt and accrued interest payable, respectively.  The associated
securitized debt is carried at amortized cost. The Company estimates the fair value of its securitized debt for
disclosure purposes as described in Note 5 to these consolidated financial statements.
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(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilized by the Company to estimate the fair value of its financial
instruments is included in Note 5 to these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s policies permit it to enter into derivative contracts, including interest rate swaps and interest rate caps,
as a means of managing its interest rate risk. The Company intends to use interest rate derivative instruments to
manage interest rate risk rather than to enhance returns.  Interest rate swaps are recorded as either assets or liabilities
in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition and measured at fair value.  Net payments on interest rate
swaps are included in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as a component of net income (loss).  Unrealized
gains (losses) on interest rate swaps are removed from net income (loss) to arrive at cash flows from operating
activities. The Company estimates the fair value of interest rate swaps as described in Note 5 of these consolidated
financial statements.

The Company elects to net by counterparty the fair value of interest rate swap contracts.  These contracts contain
legally enforceable provisions that allow for netting or setting off of all individual swaps receivable and payable with
each counterparty and, therefore, the fair value of those swap contracts are reported net by counterparty.  The credit
support annex provisions of the Company’s interest rate swap contracts allow the parties to mitigate their credit risk by
requiring the party which is in a net payable position to post collateral. As the Company elects to net by counterparty
the fair value of interest rate swap contracts, it also nets by counterparty any collateral exchanged as part of the
interest rate swap contracts.

(l) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactions in which it sells financial assets, such as RMBS, and mortgage
loans.  Gains and losses on sales of assets are computed on the average cost method whereby the Company records a
gain or loss on the difference between the average value of the asset and the proceeds from the sale.  In addition, the
Company from time to time securitizes or re-securitizes assets and sells tranches in the newly securitized
assets.  These transactions may be recorded as either sales and the assets contributed to the securitization are removed
from the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition and a gain or loss is recognized, or as secured borrowings
whereby the assets contributed to the securitization are not derecognized but rather the debt issued by the
securitization are recorded to reflect the term financing of the assets.  In these securitizations and re-securitizations,
the Company may retain senior or subordinated interests in the securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT and intends to comply with provision of the Code, with respect
thereto. Accordingly, the Company will not be subject to federal, state or local income tax to the extent that qualifying
distributions are made to stockholders and as long as certain asset, income and stock ownership tests are met. If the
Company failed to qualify as a REIT and did not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, the Company would be
subject to federal, state and local income taxes and may be precluded from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent
four taxable years following the year in which the REIT qualification was lost. The Company and CIM Trading made
a joint election to treat CIM Trading as a TRS. As such, CIM Trading is taxable as a domestic C corporation and
subject to federal, state, and local income taxes based upon its taxable income.

The provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”), clarify the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in financial statements and prescribe a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for tax positions
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taken or expected to be taken on a tax return.  The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that would
affect its financial position. The Company has not taken any tax positions that would require disclosure under ASC
740.  No accruals for penalties and interest were necessary as of September 30, 2012 or December 31, 2011.

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per share by dividing net income for the period by the basic
weighted-average shares of its common stock outstanding for that period.  Diluted net income per share takes into
account the effect of dilutive instruments, such as unvested restricted stock, but uses the average share price for the
period in determining the number of incremental shares that are to be added to the diluted weighted average number of
shares outstanding.
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(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation awards granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDAC’s
affiliates in accordance with ASC 505-50, Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees (“ASC 505-50”). Pursuant to
ASC 505-50 the Company measures the fair value of the equity instrument using the stock prices and other
measurement assumptions as of the earlier of either the date at which a performance commitment by the recipient is
reached or the date at which the recipient’s performance is complete. Compensation expense related to the grants of
stock is recognized over the vesting period of such grants based on the fair value of the stock on each quarterly vesting
date, at which the recipient’s performance is complete.

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation awards granted to the Company’s independent directors in
accordance with ASC 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”). Compensation expense for equity based
awards granted to the Company’s independent directors is recognized pro-rata over the vesting period of such awards,
based upon the fair value of such awards at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although the Company’s estimates contemplate current conditions and how it expects them to change in the future, it
is reasonably possible that actual conditions could be materially different than anticipated in those estimates, which
could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s results of operations and its financial condition. Management
has made significant estimates in accounting for income recognition and OTTI on Agency and Non-Agency RMBS
and IO RMBS (Note 3), valuation of Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 3 and 5), and interest rate swaps (Notes
5 and 9).  Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Presentation

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic
210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities.  Under this update, the Company will be required to disclose
both gross information and net information about both instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the statement
of financial position and transactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting arrangement.  The scope
would include derivatives, sale and repurchase agreements and reverse sale and repurchase agreements and securities
borrowing and securities lending arrangements.   This disclosure is intended to enable financial statement users to
understand the effect of such arrangements on the Company’s financial position.   This update is effective for the
Company for financial statements presented beginning in the first quarter of 2013.  This update will result in
additional disclosure but will have no impact on total assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity, or Net income (loss).

Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In June 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Comprehensive Income,
which attempts to improve the comparability, consistency, and transparency of financial reporting and increase the
prominence of items reported in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”).  ASU 2011-05 requires that all non-owner
changes in stockholders’ equity be presented either in a single continuous statement of net income and comprehensive
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income or two separate consecutive statements.  Either presentation requires the presentation on the face of the
financial statements any reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from OCI to net income in the
statements.  There is no change in what must be reported in OCI or when an item of OCI must be reclassified to net
income.  This update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15,
2011.  The Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-05 effective January 1, 2012.  Adoption of ASU 2011-05
did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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On December 23, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Comprehensive Income: Deferral of Effective Date for
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income In
ASU No. 2011-05, which defers those changes in ASU 2011-05 that relate to the presentation of reclassification
adjustments out of accumulated OCI. This was done to allow the FASB time to re-deliberate the presentation, on the
face of the financial statements, of the effects of reclassifications out of accumulated OCI on the components of net
income and OCI.  No other requirements under ASU 2011-05 are affected by ASU 2011-12.  FASB tentatively
decided not to require presentation of reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income on
the face of the financial statements and to propose new disclosures instead.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02 Comprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.  This update addresses the disclosure issue left open at the deferral under
ASU 2011-12.  This update requires the provision of information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated
OCI by component. In addition, it requires presentation, either on the face of the statement where net income is
presented or in the Notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated OCI by the respective line items of net
income but only if the amount reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its entirety in
the same reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to
net income, a cross-reference must be provided to other disclosures required under GAAP that provide additional
detail about those amounts. This update is effective for the Company for financial statements presented beginning in
the first quarter of 2013. Adoption of ASU 2013-02 is not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Broad Transactions

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820)

In May 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS, further converging U.S.
GAAP and IFRS by providing common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements.  FASB made changes to
the fair value measurement guidance, which include: 1) prohibiting the inclusion of block discounts in all fair value
measurements, not just Level 1 measurements, 2) adding guidance on when to include other premiums and discounts
in fair value measurements,  3) clarifying that the concepts of “highest and best use” and “valuation premise” apply only
when measuring the fair value of non-financial assets and 4) adding an exception that allows the measurement of a
group of financial assets and liabilities with offsetting risks (e.g., a portfolio of derivative contracts) at their net
exposure to a particular risk if certain criteria are met.  ASU 2011-04 also requires additional disclosure related to
items categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, including a description of the processes for valuing these
assets, providing quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used to measure fair value and, in
certain cases, explaining the sensitivity of the fair value measurements to changes in unobservable inputs.   The
Company adopted this standard in the first quarter 2012. Adoption of ASU 2011-04 increased the footnote disclosure
but had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860)

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-03, Transfers and Servicing: Reconsideration of Effective Control for
Repurchase Agreements.  In a typical repurchase agreement transaction, an entity transfers financial assets to the
counterparty in exchange for cash with an agreement for the counterparty to return the same or equivalent financial
assets for a fixed price in the future.  Prior to this update, one of the factors in determining whether sale treatment
could be used was whether the transferor maintained effective control of the transferred assets and, in order to do so,
the transferor must have the ability to repurchase such assets. In connection with the issuance of ASU 2011-03, the
FASB concluded that the assessment of effective control should focus on a transferor’s contractual rights and
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obligations with respect to transferred financial assets, rather than whether the transferor has the practical ability to
perform in accordance with those rights or obligations.  ASU 2011-03 removes the transferor’s ability criterion from
consideration of effective control.  The Company adopted this standard in the first quarter 2012.  As the Company
records repurchase agreements as secured borrowings and not sales, this update has no significant effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Services – Investment Companies (Topic 946)

In June 2013, the FASB finalized ASU 2013-08 amending the scope, measurement and disclosure requirements under
Topic 946 – Financial Services-Investment Companies.  The Board decided not to address issues related to the
applicability of investment company accounting for real estate entities and the measurement of real estate investments
at this time.  Further, as stated in ASC 946-10-15-3, the guidance in Topic 946 does not apply to real estate investment
trusts, and thus has no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

3.  Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as senior, senior interest-only, subordinated, subordinated
interest-only, and Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs.  The Company also invests in Agency
RMBS.  Senior interests in Non-Agency RMBS are considered to be entitled to the first principal repayments in their
pro-rata ownership interests at the reporting date.  The total fair value of the Non-Agency RMBS that are held by the
re-securitization trusts consolidated pursuant to ASC 810 was $3.2 billion and $3.3 billion at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.  See Note 8 of these consolidated financial statements for further discussion of
consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or notional value, total premium, total discount, amortized cost, fair value,
gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gain (loss) related to the Company’s
available-for-sale RMBS portfolio as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, by asset class.

September 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Principal or
Notional

Value
Total

Premium
Total

Discount
Amortized

Cost Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Net
Unrealized
Gain/(Loss)

Non-Agency
RMBS
Senior $135 $- $(56 ) $79 $82 $3 $- $3
Senior
interest-only 3,120,432 139,827 - 139,827 128,868 8,353 (19,312) (10,959 )
Subordinated 1,074,560 - (597,306 ) 477,254 509,061 50,307 (18,500) 31,807
Subordinated
interest-only 264,052 17,397 - 17,397 16,867 1,714 (2,244 ) (530 )
RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
variable
interest
entities
("VIEs") 4,795,819 9,356 (2,194,898) 2,512,765 3,235,572 723,073 (266 ) 722,807
Agency
RMBS 1,934,283 57,604 - 1,893,633 1,997,211 103,961 (383 ) 103,578

$11,189,281 $224,184 $(2,792,260) $5,040,955 $5,887,661 $887,411 $(40,705) $846,706

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)
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Principal or
Notional

Value
  Total
Premium

Total
Discount

Amortized
Cost Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Net
Unrealized
Gain/(Loss)

Non-Agency
RMBS
Senior $1,115 $- $(56 ) $1,059 $1,020 $2 $(41 ) $(39 )
Senior
interest-only 3,734,452 199,288 - 199,288 188,679 11,308 (21,917 ) (10,609 )
Subordinated 1,378,891 - (724,739 ) 654,152 606,895 30,997 (78,254 ) (47,257 )
Subordinated
interest-only 277,560 21,910 - 21,910 22,019 1,663 (1,554 ) 109
RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
variable
interest
entities
("VIEs") 5,265,128 19,869 (2,382,995) 2,902,002 3,270,332 420,505 (52,175 ) 368,330
Agency
RMBS 3,018,347 90,403 (159 ) 3,027,285 3,144,531 117,601 (355 ) 117,246

$13,675,493 $331,470 $(3,107,949) $6,805,696 $7,233,476 $582,076 $(154,296) $427,780

The table below presents changes in Accretable Yield, or the excess of the security’s cash flows expected to be
collected over the Company’s investment, solely as it pertains to the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio
accounted for according to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands) (dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ 2,234,791 $ 2,585,488 $ 2,342,462 $ 2,521,723
Purchases - - 86,847 91,680
Accretion (89,256 ) (102,517 ) (276,696 ) (293,727 )
Reclassification (to) from non-accretable
difference (1,809 ) (151,278 ) 12,776 59,397
Sales - - (21,663 ) (47,380 )
Balance at end of period $ 2,143,726 $ 2,331,693 $ 2,143,726 $ 2,331,693

The table below presents the outstanding principal balance and related carrying amount at the beginning and ending of
the quarterly periods ended September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 as it pertains to the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS portfolio accounted for according to the provisions of ASC 310-30.
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For the Quarter Ended
September 30,

2012
December 31,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Outstanding principal balance:
       Beginning of period $ 4,878,479 $ 5,264,486
       End of period $ 4,690,083 $ 5,245,184

Amortized cost:
       Beginning of period $ 2,420,502 $ 2,761,672
       End of period $ 2,333,309 $ 2,649,303

The following tables present the gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBS by length of
time that such securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011.  All securities in an unrealized loss position have been evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discussed in Note
2(d).

September 30,
2012

(dollars in
thousands)

Unrealized Loss Position
for Less than 12 Months

Unrealized Loss Position for
12 Months or More Total

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Number
of

Securities

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Number
of

Securities

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Number
of

Securities
Non-Agency
RMBS
Senior $ - $ - - $ - $ - - $ - $ - -
Senior
interest-only 18,928 (3,048) 10 50,449 (16,264) 20 69,377 (19,312) 30
Subordinated - - 1 192,675 (18,500) 17 192,675 (18,500) 18
Subordinated
interest-only 9,870 (2,244) 1 - - - 9,870 (2,244 ) 1
RMBS transferred
to consolidated
VIEs - - - 36,527 (266 ) 2 36,527 (266 ) 2
Agency RMBS 3,848 (164 ) 3 935 (219 ) 1 4,783 (383 ) 4
Total $ 32,646 $ (5,456) 15 $ 280,586 $ (35,249) 40 $ 313,232 $ (40,705) 55

December 31,
2011

(dollars in
thousands)

Total
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Unrealized Loss Position
for Less than 12 Months

Unrealized Loss Position
for 12 Months or More

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Number
of

Securities

Estimated
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses

Number
of

Securities
Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Losses

Number
of

Securities
Non-Agency
RMBS
Senior $ - $ - - $ 127 $ (41 ) 1 $ 127 $ (41 ) 1
Senior
interest-only 99,351 (18,756) 26 17,647 (3,161 ) 12 116,998 (21,917 ) 38
Subordinated 321,416 (52,824) 33 111,167 (25,430) 17 432,583 (78,254 ) 50
Subordinated
interest-only 16,300 (1,554 ) 2 - - - 16,300 (1,554 ) 2
RMBS transferred
to consolidated
VIEs - - - 594,369 (52,175) 18 594,369 (52,175 ) 18
Agency RMBS 3,888 (355 ) 2 - - - 3,888 (355 ) 2
Total $ 440,955 $ (73,489) 63 $ 723,310 $ (80,807) 48 $ 1,164,265 $ (154,296) 111

At September 30, 2012, the Company did not intend to sell any of its RMBS that were in an unrealized loss position,
and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be required to sell these RMBS before recovery of their
amortized cost basis, which may be at their maturity. With respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, the ability of
any entity to cause the sale by the VIE prior to the maturity of these RMBS is either expressly prohibited, not
probable, or is limited to specified events of default, none of which have occurred to date.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agency RMBS were $383 thousand and $355 thousand at September 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Given the credit quality inherent in Agency RMBS, the Company does not
consider any of the current impairments on its Agency RMBS to be credit related.  In evaluating whether it is more
likely than not that it will be required to sell any impaired security before its anticipated recovery, which may be at
their maturity, the Company considers the significance of each investment, the amount of impairment, the projected
future performance of such impaired securities, as well as the Company’s current and anticipated leverage capacity and
liquidity position. Based on these analyses, the Company determined that at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011 unrealized losses on its Agency RMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS (including Non-Agency RMBS held by consolidated
VIEs) were $40.3 million and $153.9 million at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Based
upon the most recent evaluation, the Company does not consider these unrealized losses to be indicative of OTTI and
does not believe that these unrealized losses are credit related, but rather are due to other factors. The Company has
reviewed its Non-Agency RMBS that are in an unrealized loss position to identify those securities with losses that are
other-than-temporary based on an assessment of changes in cash flows expected to be collected for such RMBS,
which considers recent bond performance and expected future performance of the underlying collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011 is presented below.
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For the Quarter Ended
September 30,
2012

September 30,
2011

(dollars in thousands)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses $ (2,713 ) $ (78,950 )
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) (7,301 ) (71,610 )
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses $ (10,014 ) $ (150,560 )

 For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012

September 30,
2011

(dollars in thousands)
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses $ (47,264 ) $ (161,924 )
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) (76,801 ) (83,989 )
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses $ (124,065 ) $ (245,913 )

The following table presents a roll forward of the credit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS for which a portion of loss was previously recognized in other comprehensive income.  The table delineates
between those securities that are recognizing OTTI for the first time as opposed to those that have previously
recognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ended
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Cumulative credit loss beginning balance $ 540,659 $ 242,649
Additions:
 Other-than-temporary impairments not previously recognized 7,275 107,553
 Reductions for securities sold during the period (33,817 ) (36 )
 Increases related to other-than-temporary impairments on securities
with previously recognized other-than-temporary impairments 2,739 43,007
 Reductions for increases in cash flows expected to be collected that
are recognized over the remaining life of the security (8,160 ) (44,817 )
Cumulative credit loss ending balance $ 508,696 $ 348,356

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
 (dollars in thousands)

Cumulative credit loss beginning balance $ 452,060 $ 237,746
Additions:
 Other-than-temporary impairments not previously recognized 97,203 185,375
 Reductions for securities sold during the period (34,107 ) (1,298 )
 Increases related to other-than-temporary impairments on securities
with previously recognized other-than-temporary impairments 26,862 60,538
 Reductions for increases in cash flows expected to be collected over
the remaining life of the securities (33,322 ) (134,005 )
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending balance $ 508,696 $ 348,356
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Cash flows generated to determine net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses recognized in earnings are
estimated using significant unobservable inputs.  The significant inputs used to measure the component of OTTI
recognized in earnings for the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS are summarized as follows:
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For the Quarter Ended
September
30, 2012

September
30, 2011

Loss Severity
Weighted Average 56% 63%
Range 41% - 80% 42% - 71%

60+ days delinquent
Weighted Average 23% 30%
Range 0% - 41% 0% - 68%

Credit Enhancement (1)
Weighted Average 13% 17%
Range 0% - 73% 0% - 89%

3 Month CPR
Weighted Average 16% 16%
Range 0% - 20% 3% - 63%

12 Month CPR
Weighted Average 17% 17%
Range 12% - 42% 6% - 38%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancement to the Re-REMIC
and underlying from each of their respective capital structures.

The following tables present a summary of unrealized gains and losses at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011.  Interest-only RMBS included in the tables below represent the right to receive a specified proportion of the
contractual interest cash flows of the underlying principal balance of specific securities.  At September 30, 2012,
interest-only RMBS had a net unrealized loss of $5.7 million and had an amortized cost of $172.0 million. At
December 31, 2011, interest-only RMBS had a net unrealized loss of $5.7 million and had an amortized cost of $237.8
million.  The fair value of IOs at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $166.3 million, and $232.2 million,
respectively.

September 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Gross
Unrealized

Gain Included
in

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Gross
Unrealized

Gain
Included

in
Accumulated

Deficit

Total Gross
Unrealized

Gain

Gross
Unrealized

Loss Included
in

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Gross
Unrealized

Loss
Included

in
Accumulated

Deficit

Total Gross
Unrealized

Loss
Non-Agency
RMBS
      Senior $ 3 $ - $ 3 $ - $ - $ -
      Senior
interest-only - 8,353 8,353 - (19,312 ) (19,312 )
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      Subordinated 50,307 - 50,307 (18,500 ) - (18,500 )
      Subordinated
interest-only - 1,714 1,714 (0 ) (2,244 ) (2,244 )
      RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs 716,876 6,197 723,073 (266 ) - (266 )
Agency RMBS 103,938 23 103,961 (0 ) (383 ) (383 )
Total $ 871,124 $ 16,287 $ 887,411 $ (18,766 ) $ (21,939 ) $ (40,705 )

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Gross
Unrealized

Gain Included
in

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Gross
Unrealized

Gain
Included in

Accumulated
Deficit

Total Gross
Unrealized

Gain

Gross
Unrealized

Loss Included
in

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Gross
Unrealized

Loss
Included in

Accumulated
Deficit

Total Gross
Unrealized

Loss
Non-Agency
RMBS
      Senior $ 2 $ - $ 2 $ (41 ) $ - $ (41 )
      Senior
interest-only - 11,308 11,308 - (21,917 ) (21,917 )
      Subordinated 30,997 - 30,997 (78,254 ) - (78,254 )
      Subordinated
interest-only - 1,663 1,663 - (1,554 ) (1,554 )
      RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs 415,688 4,817 420,505 (52,175 ) - (52,175 )
Agency RMBS 117,236 365 117,601 - (355 ) (355 )
Total $ 563,923 $ 18,153 $ 582,076 $ (130,470 ) $ (23,826 ) $ (154,296)

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, and cash flows expected to be collected, among other items, are affected
by the collateral characteristics of each asset class.  The portfolio is most heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency
RMBS with credit risk.  The Company chooses assets for the portfolio after carefully evaluating each investment’s risk
profile.
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The following tables provide a summary of the Company’s RMBS portfolio at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011.

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
  Principal
or Notional
Value
at
Period-End
(dollars in
thousands)

Weighted
Average

Amortized
Cost
Basis

Weighted
Average

Fair
Value

Weighted
Average
Coupon

Weighted
Average

Yield
at

Period-End
(1)

Principal or
Notional
Value at

Period-End
(dollars in
thousands)

Weighted
Average

Amortized
Cost
Basis

Weighted
Average
Fair
Value

Weighted
Average
Coupon

Weighted
Average

Yield
at

Period-End
(1)

Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities
   Senior $ 135 $ 58.37 $ 60.88 0.00% 11.26 % $ 1,115 $ 95.13 $ 91.55 1.02% 2.95 %
   Senior, interest
only $ 3,120,432 $ 4.48 $ 4.13 1.74% 8.81 % $ 3,734,452 $ 5.34 $ 5.05 1.96% 13.28 %
   Subordinated $ 1,074,560 $ 44.41 $ 47.37 3.17% 10.83 % $ 1,378,891 $ 47.44 $ 44.01 3.44% 9.57 %
   Subordinated,
interest only $ 264,052 $ 6.59 $ 6.39 2.45% 5.96 % $ 277,560 $ 7.89 $ 7.93 2.94% 9.93 %
   RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
variable interest
entities $ 4,795,819 $ 53.48 $ 68.87 4.96% 15.44 % $ 5,265,128 $ 55.14 $ 62.11 5.32% 14.56 %
Agency
Mortgage-Backed
Securities $ 1,934,283 $ 103.14 $ 108.78 4.65% 3.61 % $ 3,018,347 $ 103.07 $ 107.06 4.66% 3.83 %

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end.

The following table presents the weighted average credit rating, based on the lowest rating available, of the Company’s
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
AAA 0.00 % 0.53 %
AA 0.46 % 0.14 %
A 0.03 % 0.45 %
BBB 0.00 % 1.54 %
BB 0.36 % 0.00 %
B 1.44 % 0.43 %
Below B or
not rated 97.71 % 96.91 %
Total 100.00 % 100.00 %

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shorter than the stated contractual maturities.  Actual maturities of the
Company’s RMBS are affected by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgages, periodic payments of principal
and prepayments of principal.  The following tables provide a summary of the fair value and amortized cost of the
Company’s RMBS at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 according to their estimated weighted-average life
classifications.  The weighted-average lives of the RMBS in the tables below are based on lifetime expected
prepayment rates using an industry prepayment model for the Agency RMBS portfolio and the Company’s prepayment
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assumptions for the Non-Agency RMBS.  The prepayment model considers current yield, forward yield, steepness of
the interest rate curve, current mortgage rates, mortgage rates of the outstanding loan, loan age, margin, and volatility.
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September 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Weighted Average Life

Less than
one year

Greater than
one

year and less
than

five years

Greater than
five

years and less
than ten years

Greater than
ten

years Total
Fair value
     Non-Agency
RMBS
       Senior $ - $ - $ 82 $ - $ 82
       Senior
interest-only 570 63,876 53,324 11,098 128,868
       Subordinated 521 67,397 305,436 135,707 509,061
       Subordinated
interest-only - - - 16,867 16,867
       RMBS
transferred to
consolidated VIEs 15,028 320,800 2,143,280 756,464 3,235,572
    Agency RMBS 224 1,996,987 - - 1,997,211
Total fair value $ 16,343 $ 2,449,060 $ 2,502,122 $ 920,136 $ 5,887,661
Amortized cost
     Non-Agency
RMBS
       Senior $ - $ - $ 79 $ - $ 79
       Senior
interest-only 798 77,297 53,085 8,647 139,827
       Subordinated 357 64,832 293,471 118,594 477,254
       Subordinated
interest-only - - - 17,397 17,397
       RMBS
transferred to
consolidated VIEs 14,228 247,324 1,650,825 600,388 2,512,765
    Agency RMBS 202 1,893,431 - - 1,893,633
Total amortized cost $ 15,585 $ 2,282,884 $ 1,997,460 $ 745,026 $ 5,040,955

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Weighted Average Life

Less than
one year

Greater than
one

year and less
than

Greater than
five

years and less
than ten years

Greater than
ten

years

Total
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five years
Fair value
     Non-Agency
RMBS
       Senior $ 892 $ - $ 128 $ - $ 1,020
       Senior
interest-only - 85,633 69,204 33,842 188,679
       Subordinated 6,530 101,984 259,549 238,832 606,895
       Subordinated
interest-only - - 1,812 20,207 22,019
       RMBS
transferred to
consolidated VIEs 25,375 338,616 2,119,030 787,311 3,270,332
     Agency RMBS 17,932 1,735,106 824,645 566,848 3,144,531
Total fair value $ 50,729 $ 2,261,339 $ 3,274,368 $ 1,647,040 $ 7,233,476
Amortized cost
     Non-Agency
RMBS
       Senior $ 891 $ - $ 168 $ - $ 1,059
       Senior
interest-only - 95,974 69,953 33,361 199,288
       Subordinated 5,616 98,657 300,489 249,390 654,152
       Subordinated
interest-only - - 1,946 19,964 21,910
       RMBS
transferred to
consolidated VIEs 32,806 296,144 1,827,000 746,052 2,902,002
     Agency RMBS 17,610 1,663,917 798,632 547,126 3,027,285
Total amortized cost $ 56,923 $ 2,154,692 $ 2,998,188 $ 1,595,893 $ 6,805,696

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credit risk.  The Company seeks to mitigate credit risk through its asset
selection process.  The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralized by what the Company classifies as
Alt-A first lien mortgages.  The Company categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whether the loans were
originally described as “prime” if the behavior of the collateral when the Company purchased the security more typically
resembles Alt-A.  The Company defines Alt-A collateral characteristics to be evidenced by the 60+ day delinquency
bucket of the pool being greater than 5% and the weighted average FICO scores at the time of origination as greater
than 650.  At September 30, 2012, 99.6% of the Non-Agency RMBS collateral was Alt-A.  At December 31, 2011,
97.4% of the Non-Agency RMBS collateral was Alt-A.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the following collateral characteristics at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.
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September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

Weighted average maturity (years) 24.8 25.7
Weighted average amortized loan to value
(1) 71.6 % 71.5 %
Weighted average FICO (2) 717.3 718.4
Weighted average loan balance (in
thousands) $ 453.1 $ 469.0
Weighted average percentage owner
occupied 85.1 % 85.3 %
Weighted average percentage single family
residence 65.5 % 65.6 %
Weighted average current credit
enhancement 3.1 % 4.5 %
Weighted average geographic concentration
of top five states CA 37.1 % CA 38.1 %

FL 8.6 % FL 8.5 %
NY 6.3 % NY 6.1 %
VA 2.6 % NJ 2.7 %
NJ 2.5 % VA 2.4 %

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collateral at the time of loan
origination.
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origination.

The table below presents the origination year of the underlying loans related to the Company’s portfolio of
Non-Agency RMBS at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Origination Year September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
2001 0.2 % 0.2 %
2003 0.4 % 0.9 %
2004 0.5 % 1.3 %
2005 13.8 % 13.8 %
2006 32.2 % 31.8 %
2007 49.9 % 48.7 %
2008 3.0 % 3.3 %

Total 100.0 % 100.0 %

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, the Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $795.1 million for
realized gains of $69.2 million.  During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, the Company sold RMBS with a
carrying value of $2.3 million for realized gains of $58 thousand. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012,
the Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $858.2 million for realized gains of $85.2 million. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2011, the Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $669.1 million for realized
gains of $1.8 million.

4.  Securitized Loans Held for Investment
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The Company is considered to be the primary beneficiary of VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizing whole
mortgage loans.  Refer to Note 8 for additional details regarding the Company’s involvement with VIEs.

The following table provides a summary of the changes in the carrying value of securitized loans held for investment
at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

September 30, 2012
December 31,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Balance, beginning of period $ 256,632 $ 349,112
Purchases 1,185,664 -
Principal paydowns (297,923 ) (85,526 )
Net periodic amortization
(accretion) (7,846 ) (1,663 )
Change to loan loss provision 396 (5,291 )
Balance, end of period $ 1,136,923 $ 256,632

The following table represents the Company’s securitized residential mortgage loans classified as held for investment
at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

September 30, 2012
December 31,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Securitized loans, at amortized
cost $ 1,148,187 $ 270,570
Less: allowance for loan losses 11,264 13,938
Securitized loans held for
investment $ 1,136,923 $ 256,632

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralized by prime, jumbo, first lien residential mortgages of which 9.8% were
originated during 2012, 59.8% were originated during 2011, 13.2% during 2010, and the remaining 17.2% of the loans
were originated prior to 2010.  A summary of key characteristics of these loans follows.
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September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Number of loans 1,384 392
Weighted average maturity
(years) 28.2 25.8
Weighted average loan to
value (1) 71.7 % 75.5 %
Weighted average FICO (2) 767 752
Weighted average loan
balance (in thousands) $ 820.1 $ 684.0
Weighted average
percentage owner occupied 94.0 % 91.1 %
Weighted average
percentage single family
residence 65.9 % 58.1 %
Weighted average
geographic concentration of
top five states CA 39.6 % CA 36.0 %

NY 7.7 % FL 6.1 %
WA 6.6 % AZ 5.8 %
VA 4.7 % NJ 5.4 %
MD 4.2 % IL 5.3 %

(1) Value represents appraised value of the
collateral at the time of loan origination.
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan
origination.

The following table summarizes the changes in the allowance for loan losses for the securitized mortgage loan
portfolio for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and year ended December 31, 2011:

For the Nine
Months

Ended September
30, 2012

For the Year
Ended

December 31,
2011

(dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of
period $ 13,938 $ 11,006
Provision for loan losses (396 ) 5,291
Charge-offs (2,278 ) (2,359 )
Balance, end of period $ 11,264 $ 13,938

The Company has established an allowance for loan losses related to securitized loans that is composed of a general
and specific reserve.  The balance in the allowance for loan losses related to the general reserve at September 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011 was $4.7 million and $6.3 million, respectively.  The balance in the allowance for loan losses
related to the specific reserve at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $6.6 million and $7.6 million,
respectively.
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The Company’s overall provision for loan losses is described in Note 2(g).  The Company’s general reserve is based on
historical loss rates for pools of loans with similar credit characteristics, adjusted for current trends and market
conditions, including current trends in delinquencies and severities.  The Company has established a specific reserve
that reflects consideration of loans more than 60 days delinquent, loans in foreclosure, borrowers that have declared
bankruptcy, and real estate owned.  The loan loss provision related to these loans is measured as the difference
between the unpaid principal balance and the estimated fair value of the property securing the mortgage, less
estimated costs to sell.  The specific reserve also reflects consideration of concessions granted to borrowers by the
servicer in the form of modifications (i.e., reductions).  Loan loss provisions related to these modifications are based
on the contractual principal and interest payments, post-modification, discounted at the loan’s original effective interest
rate.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired loans for which the Company established a specific reserve was $28.3
million and $32.9 million at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.  The Company’s recorded
investment in impaired loans for which there is a related allowance for credit losses at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 was $21.2 million and $14.3 million, respectively.  The total unpaid principal balance of
non-impaired loans for which the Company established a general reserve was $1.1 billion and $235.2 million at
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.  The Company’s recorded investment in loans that are not
impaired for which there is a related general reserve for credit losses at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
was $1.1 billion and $228.9 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the outstanding principal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and greater as reported
by the servicer at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

30 Days
Delinquent

60 Days
Delinquent

90+ Days
Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousands)

September 30,
2012 $ 2,372 $ 2,008 $ 3,999 $ 0 $ 4,030 $ 1,768 $ 14,177
December 31,
2011 $ 1,342 $ 1,828 $ 2,338 $ 1,659 $ 3,626 $ 5,201 $ 15,994
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With the exception of its ability to approve loan modifications solely as it relates to CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC
2012-CIM2 as further described in Note 2(g), the Company does not service or modify loans held for investment.  The
trustee and servicer of the respective securitization are responsible for servicing and modifying these loans.  The
Company is required to make certain assumptions in accounting for loans held for investment due to the limitation of
information available to the Company.  The following table presents the loans that were modified by the servicer
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011.

Number
of Loans
Modified
During
Period

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

of Modified
Loans

(Pre-modification)

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

of Modified
Loans

(Post-modification)

Amortized
Cost of

Modified
Loans

Amortized Cost
of

Modified Loans
For Which
There is an

Allowance for
Loan Losses

Amortized
Cost of

Modified
Loans For

Which
There is No

Allowance for
Loan Losses

(dollars in thousands)
  Nine Months
Ended
  September
30, 2012 7 $ 3,943 $ 4,053 $ 4,025 $ 4,025 $ 0
  September
30, 2011 6 $ 4,447 $ 4,821 $ 4,876 $ 4,876 $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a method of loss mitigation.  Based on the information available, during the
quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company determined that all loans modified by the servicer
were considered troubled debt restructurings, as defined under GAAP. A troubled debt restructuring is generally any
modification of a loan to a borrower that is experiencing financial difficulties, where a lender agrees to terms that are
more favorable to the borrower than are otherwise available in the current market. All loan modifications during the
quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 included a reduction of the stated
interest rates.  Loans modified by the servicer have been individually assessed for impairment and measurement of
impairment is based on the excess of the recorded investment in the loan over the present value of the expected cash
flows, post modification, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate at inception.  In the absence of additional loan
modifications by the servicer in future periods that are considered to be TDR’s, the $4.5 million specific reserve related
to TDR’s as of September 30, 2012 will be recognized in net income in future periods by way of a decrease in the
provision for loan losses.

As of September 30, 2012, one loan with an outstanding principal balance of approximately $1.6 million that was
modified in the past twelve months was delinquent on its scheduled payments.  This loan was individually evaluated
for impairment and the related allowance for loan loss is based on the excess of the recorded investment in the loan
over the present value of the expected cash flows, post modification, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate at
inception.

5.  Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accordance with GAAP to account for its financial instruments. The
Company categorizes its financial instruments, based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, into a
three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to
measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest
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level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities recorded
at fair value on the consolidated statements of financial condition or disclosed in the related notes are categorized
based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 – inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in active
markets.

Level 2 – inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument.

Level 3 – inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 are sensitive to changes in the assumptions or methodology used
to determine fair value and such changes could result in a significant increase or decrease in the fair value. For the
Company’s investments in Non-Agency RMBS categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the significant
unobservable inputs include the discount rates, assumptions relating to prepayments, default rates and loss severities.
Significant increases (decreases) in any of the discount rates, default rates or loss severities in isolation would result in
a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement. The impact of changes in prepayment speeds would have
differing impacts on fair value, depending on the seniority of the investment. Generally, a change in the default
assumption is accompanied by directionally similar changes in the assumptions used for the loss severity and the
prepayment speed.
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Any changes to the valuation methodology are reviewed by management to ensure the changes are appropriate. As
markets and products evolve and the pricing for certain products becomes more transparent, the Company will
continue to refine its valuation methodologies. The methodology utilized by the Company for the periods presented is
unchanged.  The methods used to produce a fair value calculation may not be indicative of net realizable value or
reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies, or assumptions, to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.  The
Company uses inputs that are current as of the measurement date, which may include periods of market dislocation,
during which price transparency may be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has been experienced for some time and continues to exist, the observability of
prices and inputs can be difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS.  If third party pricing services are unable to provide
a price for an asset, or if the price provided by them is deemed unreliable by the Company, then the asset will be
valued at its fair value as determined by the Company without validation to third-party pricing.  In addition, validating
third party pricing for the Company’s investments may be more subjective as fewer participants may be willing to
provide this service to the Company.  Illiquid investments typically experience greater price volatility as an active
market does not exist.  Observability of prices and inputs can vary significantly from period to period and may cause
instruments to change classifications within the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by the Company to estimate the fair value of its financial instruments by
instrument class follows:

Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accrued interest receivable, dividends payable, and accrued interest
payable are considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value due to the short term nature of these financial
instruments.

Agency and Non-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair value of its investment securities utilizing an internal pricing model that
incorporates such factors as coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted average life, collateral composition, borrower
characteristics, expected interest rates, life caps, periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasoning, expected losses,
expected default severity, credit enhancement, and other pertinent factors.  Management reviews the fair values
generated by the model to determine whether prices are reflective of the current market.  Management indirectly
corroborates its estimates of the fair value using pricing models by comparing its results to independent prices
provided by dealers in the securities and/or third party pricing services.  Certain very liquid asset classes, such as
Agency fixed-rate pass-throughs may be priced using independent sources such as quoted prices for
To-Be-Announced (“TBA”) securities.  

The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an active market such that participants transact with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide transparent pricing information on an ongoing basis. The liquidity of the Agency
RMBS market and the similarity of the Company’s securities to those actively traded enable the Company to observe
quoted prices in the market and utilize those prices as a basis for formulating fair value measurements.  Consequently,
the Company has classified Agency RMBS as Level 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

The Company’s fair value estimation process for Non-Agency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted prices that are
observed in the market.  The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default and severity curves all involve Management
judgment and assumptions that are deemed to be significant to the fair value measurement process, which renders the
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resulting Non-Agency fair value estimates Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.
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Interest Rate Swaps

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determine the fair values of its interest rate swaps.  The Company compares the
dealer quotations received to its own estimate of fair value to evaluate for reasonableness.  The dealer quotes
incorporate common market pricing methods, including a spread measurement to the Treasury yield curve or interest
rate swap curve as well as underlying characteristics of the particular contract. Interest rate swaps are modeled by the
Company by incorporating such factors as the term to maturity, Treasury curve, LIBOR rates, and the payment rates
on the fixed portion of the interest rate swaps. The Company has classified Interest Rate Swaps as Level 2 inputs in
the fair value hierarchy.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company changed its discount rate assumption used to determine the fair value
of interest rate swaps from LIBOR to the overnight index swap rate in response to changes in market valuation
practices for interest rate swaps that are collateralized.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy, at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is presented below.

September 30, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
 Senior $ - $ - $ 82
 Senior interest-only - - 128,868
 Subordinated - - 509,061
 Subordinated interest-only - - 16,867
 RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs - - 3,235,572
Agency mortgage-backed
securities - 1,997,211 -

Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps - 59,073 -
Total $ - $ 2,056,284 $ 3,890,450

December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
 Senior $ - $ - $ 1,020
 Senior interest-only - - 188,679
 Subordinated - - 606,895
 Subordinated interest-only - - 22,019
 RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs - - 3,270,332
Agency mortgage-backed
securities - 3,144,531 -
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Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps - 44,467 -
Total $ - $ 3,188,998 $ 4,088,945
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The table below provides a summary of the changes in the fair value of securities classified as Level 3.

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level 3
(dollars in thousands)

For the Nine Months Ended For the Year Ended

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Non-Agency RMBS
     Beginning balance Level 3
assets $ 4,088,945 $ 5,529,109
     Transfers in to Level 3 assets - -
     Transfers out of Level 3 assets - -
     Purchases 116,627 446,207
     Principal payments (404,294 ) (695,277 )
     Sales (328,261 ) (631,642 )
     Accretion of purchase discounts 69,532 81,224
    Gains (losses) included in net
income
     Other than temporary credit
impairment losses (124,065 ) (357,105 )
     Realized gains (losses) on sales 48,434 445
     Net unrealized gains (losses) on
interest-only RMBS 393 (14,717 )
    Gains (losses) included in other
comprehensive income
     Total unrealized gains (losses)
for the period 423,139 (269,299 )
     Ending balance Level 3 assets $ 3,890,450 $ 4,088,945

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 during the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended December
31, 2011.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estimate the fair value of Non-Agency RMBS as of September 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011 follows:

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted
Average
Discount

Rate

Prepayment
Speed
(CPR)

Cumulative
Default

Rate

Loss
Severity

Weighted
Average
Discount

Rate

Prepayment
Speed
(CPR)

Cumulative
Default

Rate

Loss
Severity

Range Range
Non-Agency
RMBS

   Senior 10.0 %
12%
- 12 %

0% -
4 %

50%
- 54 % 4.3 %

1%
- 12 %

0% -
19 %

50%
- 85 %
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   Senior
interest-only 14.1 %

1% -
20 %

0% -
26 %

50%
- 85 % 14.9 %

1%
- 22 %

0% -
24 %

50%
- 85 %

   Subordinated 23.7 %
1% -
18 %

0% -
26 %

50%
- 85 % 28.5 %

1%
- 20 %

0% -
23 %

50%
- 85 %

   Subordinated
interest-only 13.1 %

4% -
10 %

0% -
18 %

50%
- 71 % 13.5 %

3%
- 9 %

0% -
21 %

50%
- 80 %

   RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs 6.7 %

1% -
14 %

0% -
36 %

50%
- 85 % 9.1 %

1%
- 13 %

0% -
35 %

50%
- 85 %

All of the significant inputs listed have some degree of market observability, based on the Company’s knowledge of
the market, information available to market participants, and use of common market data sources. Collateral default
and loss severity projections are in the form of “curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect the Company’s collateral
cash flow projections.  Methods used to develop these projections conform to industry conventions. The Company
uses assumptions it considers its best estimate of future cash flows for each respective security.

The discount rates applied to the expected cash flows to determine fair value are derived from a range of observable
prices on securities backed by similar collateral.  As the market becomes more or less liquid, the availability of these
observable inputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage of the collateral balance that is expected to pay off at each point in the
future. The prepayment speed is based on factors such as collateral FICO score, loan-to-value ratio, debt-to-income
ratio, and vintage on a loan level basis and is scaled up or down to reflect recent collateral-specific prepayment
experience as obtained from remittance reports and market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the current “pipeline” of loans that are more than 30 days delinquent, in
foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are real estate owned (“REO”). These delinquent loans determine the first 30 months of the
default curve. Beyond month 30, the default curve transitions to a value that is reflective of a portion of the current
delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expected loss severity is based on collateral-specific experience with
consideration given to other mitigating collateral characteristics. Characteristics such as seasoning are taken into
consideration because severities tend to initially increase on newly originated securities, before beginning to decline
as the collateral ages and eventually stabilizes.  Collateral characteristics such as loan size, loan-to-value, and
geographic location of collateral also effect loss severity.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held for investment at principal value, plus unamortized premiums, less
unaccreted discounts and allowance for loan losses.  The Company estimates the fair value of its securitized loans held
for investment by considering the loan characteristics, including the credit characteristics of the borrower, purpose of
the loan, use of the collateral securing the loan, and management’s expectations of general economic conditions in the
sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase agreements are collateralized financing transactions utilized by the Company to acquire investment
securities.  Due to the short term nature of these financial instruments, the Company estimates and records the fair
value of these repurchase agreements using the contractual obligation plus accrued interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred to Consolidated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Held for
Investment

The Company records securitized debt for certificates or notes financed without recourse to the Company in
securitization or re-securitization transactions treated as secured borrowings pursuant to ASC 860.  The Company
carries securitized debt at the principal balance outstanding plus unamortized premiums, less unaccreted discounts
recorded in connection with the financing of the loans or RMBS with third parties.  The premiums or discounts
associated with the financing of the notes or certificates are amortized over the contractual life of the instrument using
the interest method.  The Company estimates the fair value of securitized debt by estimating the future cash flows
associated with the underlying assets collateralizing the secured debt outstanding.  The Company models the fair value
of each underlying asset by considering, among other items, the structure of the underlying security, coupon, servicer,
actual and expected defaults, actual and expected default severities, reset indices, and prepayment speeds in
conjunction with market research for similar collateral performance and management’s expectations of general
economic conditions in the sector and other economic factors.

The following table presents the carrying value and fair value, as described above, of the Company’s financial
instruments at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Level in

Fair
Value

Hierarchy
Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Non-Agency RMBS 3 $ 3,890,450 $ 3,890,450 $ 4,088,945 $ 4,088,945
Agency RMBS 2 1,997,211 1,997,211 3,144,531 3,144,531
Securitized loans held for
investment 3 1,136,923 1,153,764 256,632 237,977
Repurchase agreements 2 (1,658,906) (1,662,651) (2,672,989) (2,677,402)
Securitized debt,
collateralized by
Non-Agency RMBS 3 (1,252,752) (1,319,372) (1,630,276) (1,546,237)
Securitized debt,
collateralized by

3 (1,033,925) (1,046,118) (212,778 ) (222,921 )
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loans held for
investment 
Interest rate swaps 2 (59,073 ) (59,073 ) (44,467 ) (44,467 )

6.  Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.7 billion and $2.7 billion of repurchase agreements with weighted average
borrowing rates of 0.48% and 0.35% and weighted average remaining maturities of 64 days and 48 days as of
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.  At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Agency
RMBS pledged as collateral under these repurchase agreements had an estimated fair value of $1.7 billion and $2.8
billion, respectively.  The average daily balances of the Company’s repurchase agreements for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and year ended December 31, 2011 were $2.3 billion and $3.8 billion, respectively. The interest
rates of these repurchase agreements are generally indexed to the one-month or the three-month LIBOR rate and
re-price accordingly.
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At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the repurchase agreements collateralized by Agency RMBS had the
following remaining maturities.

September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

(dollars in thousands)
Overnight $ 35,430 $ -
1-29 days 1,130,037 1,368,945
30 to 59 days 144,595 836,007
60 to 89 days - -
90 to 119 days 35,475 171,836
Greater than or equal to 120
days 313,369 296,201
Total $ 1,658,906 $ 2,672,989

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company did not have an amount at risk under its repurchase
agreements greater than 10% of its equity with any counterparty.

7.  Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateralized by residential mortgage loans or Non-Agency RMBS.  For
financial reporting purposes, the Company’s securitized debt is accounted for as secured borrowings.  Thus, the
residential mortgage loans or RMBS held as collateral are recorded in the assets of the Company as securitized loans
held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs and the securitized debt is recorded as a
non-recourse liability in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

At September 30, 2012 the Company’s securitized debt collateralized by residential mortgage loans had a principal
balance of $1.0 billion.  The debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042.  At September 30, 2012 the debt carried a
weighted average cost of financing equal to 3.63%.  At December 31, 2011, the Company’s securitized debt
collateralized by residential mortgage loans had a principal balance of $222.9 million.  At December 31, 2011, the
debt carried a weighted average cost of financing equal to 5.48%.

At September 30, 2012 the Company’s securitized debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principal balance
of $1.3 billion.  The debt matures between the years 2035 and 2047.  At September 30, 2012 the debt carried a
weighted average cost of financing equal to 4.96%.  At December 31, 2011, the Company’s securitized debt
collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principal balance of $1.7 billion.  At December 31, 2011, the debt carried
a weighted average cost of financing equal to 5.09%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is based on its amortized cost, net of premiums or discounts related to sales of
senior certificates to third parties.  The following table presents the estimated principal repayment schedule of the
securitized debt at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, based on expected cash flows of the residential
mortgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted for projected losses on the underlying collateral of the debt.  All of the
securitized debt recorded in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition is non-recourse to the
Company.

September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

(dollars in thousands)
Within One Year $ 640,029 $ 488,886
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One to Three Years 737,935 598,921
Three to Five Years 388,354 276,965
Greater Than or Equal to
Five Years 454,842 404,386
Total $ 2,221,160 $ 1,769,158

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt are dependent upon cash flows received from the underlying loans. The
estimate of their repayment is based on scheduled principal payments on the underlying loans. This estimate will
differ from actual amounts to the extent prepayments and/or loan losses are experienced.  See Notes 3 and 4 for a
more detailed discussion of the securities and loans collateralizing the securitized debt.

8.  Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Other Variable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VIEs for the purpose of securitizing whole mortgage loans or
re-securitizing RMBS and obtaining permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Company evaluated its interest in
each VIE to determine if it is the primary beneficiary.  
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Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE requires significant judgment.  The Company determined that for the
securitizations it consolidates, its ownership of substantially all subordinate interests provided the Company with the
obligation to absorb losses and/or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could be significant to the VIE.  In
addition, the Company is considered to have the power to direct the activities of the VIEs that most significantly
impact the VIEs’ economic performance (“power”) or the Company was determined to have power in connection with its
involvement with the purpose and design of the VIE.  Two trusts formed prior to January 1, 2010 that were evaluated
by the Company did not meet the requirements for consolidation due to the Company’s inability to control certain
activities of the VIEs.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company’s consolidated statement of financial condition includes nine consolidated
VIE’s with $4.4 billion of assets and $2.3 billion of liabilities.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by these securitization vehicles, which are consolidated on the Company’s
statement of financial condition, is restricted by the structural provisions of these entities, and a recovery of the
Company’s investment in the vehicles will be limited by each entity’s distribution provisions. The liabilities of the
securitization vehicles, which are also consolidated on the Company’s statement of financial condition, are
non-recourse to the Company, and can generally only be satisfied from each securitization vehicle’s respective asset
pool.

The Company is not obligated to provide, nor has it provided, any financial support to these consolidated
securitization vehicles.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficiary

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for which the Company is the primary beneficiary are typically the
subordinated tranches of these re-securitizations and in some cases the Company may hold interests in additional
tranches.  The result of consolidation at September 30, 2012 is the inclusion of $3.2 billion of Non-Agency RMBS at
fair value representing the underlying securities of the trusts, the inclusion of $1.1 billion of securitized loans held for
investment, the recognition of $1.3 billion of securitized debt associated with Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $1.0 billion of securitized debt associated with loans held for investment. In addition, at
September 30, 2012 the Company recognized $25.2 million and $8.5 million of accrued interest receivable and
accrued interest payable, respectively, of the securitizations.

The trusts are structured as pass through entities that receive principal and interest on the underlying collateral and
distribute those payments to the certificate holders.  The assets held by the securitization entities are restricted in that
they can only be used to fulfill the obligations of the securitization entity.  The Company’s risks associated with its
involvement with these VIEs are limited to its risks and rights as a certificate holder of the bonds it has
retained.  There have been no recent changes to the nature of risks associated with the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

The securitization entities are comprised of senior classes of RMBS and jumbo, prime, residential mortgage
loans.  See Notes 3 and 4 for a discussion of the characteristics of the securities and loans in the Company’s portfolio.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated statements of financial condition related
to the consolidated VIEs as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Assets
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  Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs $ 3,235,572 $ 3,270,332
  Securitized loans held for investment 1,136,923 256,632
  Accrued interest receivable 25,215 26,616
Liabilities
  Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS $ 1,252,752 $ 1,630,276
  Securitized debt, collateralized by loans held for
investment 1,033,925 212,778
  Accrued interest payable 8,477 8,130
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Income and expense and OTTI amounts related to consolidated VIEs recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income is presented in the table below.

For the Quarter Ended
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Interest income, Assets of consolidated VIEs $ 108,120 $ 116,805
Interest expense, Non-recourse liabilities of VIEs (32,075 ) (29,643 )
Net interest income $ 76,045 $ 87,162

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses (241 ) (36,082 )
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss) (3,032 ) (100,701 )
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment
losses $ (3,273 ) $ (136,783 )

For the Nine Months Ended:
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Interest income, Assets of consolidated VIEs $ 315,962 $ 339,765
Interest expense, Non-recourse liabilities of VIEs (85,604 ) (95,002 )
Net interest income $ 230,358 $ 244,763

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses $ (7,510 ) $ (62,970 )
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss) (76,164 ) (112,985 )
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment
losses $ (83,674 ) $ (175,955 )

The amounts recorded on the consolidated statements of cash flows related to consolidated VIEs is presented in the
table below for the periods presented.

For the Quarter Ended
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,215 386
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt
discounts/premiums, net 4,352 2,949
Principal payments, Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIE's 130,869 156,180
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for
investment 183,775 16,945
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,
collateralized by loans held for investment 11,628 -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,
collateralized by loans held for investment (182,073 ) (15,895 )

(122,494 ) (153,979 )

Edgar Filing: CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORP - Form 10-Q

60



Payments on securitized debt
borrowings, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 927 (1,689 )
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable (1,080 ) (861 )
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated VIEs $ 27,119 $ 4,036

For the Nine Months Ended:
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 6,480 $ 1,294
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt
discounts/premiums, net 3,469 9,452
Payment of deferred financing costs (8,073 ) -
Principal payments, Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIE's 394,641 541,348
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for
investment 297,923 65,347
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,
collateralized by loans held for investment 1,113,154 -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,
collateralized by loans held for investment (292,568 ) (61,054 )
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,
collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS - 311,012
Payments on securitized debt
borrowings, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS (380,432 ) (520,730 )
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 1,401 (3,592 )
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 347 (1,241 )
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated VIEs $ 1,136,342 $ 341,836

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Beneficiary

The Company has interests in the following VIEs in addition to the RMBS described in Note 3.

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which it is not considered the primary beneficiary generally is in the form
of owning securities issued by the trusts, similar to its investments in other RMBS that do not provide the Company
with a controlling financial interest.  The Company’s maximum exposure to loss does not include other-than-temporary
impairments or other write-downs that the Company previously recognized through earnings.
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The table below represents the carrying amounts and classification of assets recorded on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements related to its variable interests in non-consolidated VIEs, as well as its maximum exposure to loss
as a result of its involvement with these VIEs, which is represented by the fair value of the Company’s investments in
the trusts.

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Amortized

Cost Fair Value
Amortized

Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousands)

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $79 $82 $168 $127
Senior interest-only - 179 128 266
Subordinated 894 2,709 4,651 4,858
Agency RMBS 1,356 1,148 1,890 2,273
Total $2,329 $4,118 $6,837 $7,524

9.  Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate risk management strategy, the Company economically hedges a portion
of its interest rate risk by entering into derivative financial instrument contracts in the form of interest rate swaps.  The
Company’s swaps are used to lock in a fixed rate related to a portion of its current and anticipated payments on its
repurchase agreements. The Company typically agrees to pay a fixed rate of interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the
right to receive a floating rate of interest (“receive rate”) over a specified period of time.  These derivative financial
instrument contracts are not designated as hedges under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.  The use of interest rate
swaps creates exposure to credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized if the counterparties to these
instruments fail to perform their obligations under the contracts.  In the event of a default by the counterparty, the
Company could have difficulty obtaining its RMBS pledged as collateral for swaps.  The Company periodically
monitors the credit of its counterparties to determine if it is exposed to counterparty credit risk. See Note 13 for further
discussion.

The table below summarizes the location and fair value of interest rate swaps reported in the Consolidated Statements
of Financial Condition as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Location on
Consolidated
Statement of

Financial
Condition Notional Amount

Net Estimated Fair
Value/Carrying

Value

Value of Agency
RMBS Pledged as

Collateral
(dollars in thousands)
September
30, 2012 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (59,073 ) $ 62,734
December
31, 2011 Liabilities $ 950,000 $ (44,467 ) $ 46,647

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaps on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income is presented below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of Operations and
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Comprehensive Income
Net Unrealized Gains

(Losses)
on Interest Rate Swaps

Net Realized Gains
(Losses)

on Interest Rate Swaps
(dollars in thousands)

For the Quarter Ended:
September 30, 2012 $ (4,427 ) $ (5,298 )
September 30, 2011 $ (25,312 ) $ (4,500 )

For the Nine Months
Ended:
September 30, 2012 $ (14,607 ) $ (14,890 )
September 30, 2011 $ (34,981 ) $ (11,644 )

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’s interest rate swaps at September 30, 2012 was 1.81% and the
weighted average receive rate was 0.22%.  The weighted average pay rate on the Company’s interest rate swaps at
December 31, 2011 was 2.08% and the weighted average receive rate was 0.29%.
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The following table summarizes the notional amounts and unrealized gains (losses) of interest rate swap contracts on a
gross basis, amounts offset in accordance with netting arrangements and net amounts as presented in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, 2012
Interest Rate Swaps - Asset Interest Rate Swaps - Liability

Notional
Unrealized

Gains Notional
Unrealized

Losses
(dollars in thousands)

Gross
Amounts $ - $ - $ 1,355,000 $ 59,073
Amounts
Offset - - - -
Netted
Amounts $ - $ - $ 1,355,000 $ 59,073

December 31, 2011
Interest Rate Swaps - Asset Interest Rate Swaps - Liability

Notional
Unrealized

Gains Notional
Unrealized

Losses
(dollars in thousands)

Gross
Amounts $ - $ - $ 950,000 $ 44,467
Amounts
Offset - - - -
Netted
Amounts $ - $ - $ 950,000 $ 44,467

All of the Company’s derivative contracts are subject to International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreements (“ISDA”) which contain provisions that grant counterparties certain rights with respect to the applicable
ISDA upon the occurrence of (i) negative performance that results in a decline in net assets in excess of specified
thresholds or dollar amounts over set periods of time, (ii) the Company’s failure to maintain its REIT status, (iii) the
Company’s failure to comply with limits on the amount of leverage, and (iv) the Company’s stock being delisted from
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). Upon the occurrence of items (i) through (iv), the counterparty to the
applicable ISDA has a right to terminate the ISDA in accordance with its provisions. The aggregate fair value of all
derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that are in a net liability position at September 30,
2012 is approximately $59.1 million including accrued interest, which represents the maximum amount the Company
would be required to pay upon termination, which is fully collateralized.

10.  Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into an equity distribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securities
LLC (“UBS”).  Through this agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, as its sales agent, up to 125,000,000
shares of its common stock in ordinary brokers’ transactions at market prices or other transactions as agreed between
the Company and UBS.  The Company did not sell any shares of its common stock under the equity distribution
agreement during the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012 or September 30, 2011.  As a result of the
Company’s delay in filing its SEC reports by the filing date required by the SEC (including the grace period permitted
by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the Company will not be able to issue shares
of its common stock under the equity distribution agreement until filings with the SEC have been timely made for a
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full year.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implemented a Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan
(“DRSPP”).  The DRSPP provides holders of record of its common stock an opportunity to automatically reinvest all or
a portion of their cash distributions received on common stock in additional shares of the Company’s common stock as
well as to make optional cash payments to purchase shares of its common stock. Persons who are not already
stockholders may also purchase the Company’s common stock under the plan through optional cash payments.  The
DRSPP is administered by the Administrator, Computershare. The DRSPP was suspended during the quarter ended
March 31, 2012 when the Company was no longer current in its filings with the SEC.  During the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 the Company raised $117 thousand by issuing 39,000 shares through the DRSPP.   During the
nine months ended September 30, 2011 the Company raised $786 thousand by issuing 214,000 shares through the
DRSPP. As a result of the Company’s delay in filing its SEC reports by the filing date required by the SEC (including
the grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the Company
will not be able to issue shares under the DRSPP until filings with the SEC have been timely made for a full year.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 the Company declared dividends to common shareholders totaling
$92.4 million, or $0.09 per share.  During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, the Company declared dividends to
common shareholders totaling $133.4 million, or $0.13 per share.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 the Company declared dividends to common shareholders totaling
$297.8 million, or $0.29 per share.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company declared
dividends to common shareholders totaling $410.5 million, or $0.40 per share.

Earnings per share for the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively,
is computed as follows:

For the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

(dollars in thousands)
Numerator:
Net income $ 128,068 $ (60,036 )
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income  available
to stockholders $ 128,068 $ (60,036 )

Denominator:
Weighted average basic
shares 1,026,841,087 1,026,404,030
Effect of dilutive securities 663,943 791,374
Weighted average dilutive
shares 1,027,505,030 1,027,195,404

Net income  per average share
attributable to
common stockholders - Basic $ 0.12 $ (0.06 )
Net income  per average share
attributable to
common stockholders -
Diluted $ 0.12 $ (0.06 )

For the Nine Months Ended:
September 30,

2012
September 30,

2011
(dollars in thousands)

Numerator:
Net income $ 249,082 $ 94,581
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income  available
to stockholders $ 249,082 $ 94,581

Denominator:
Weighted average basic
shares 1,026,804,427 1,026,308,073
Effect of dilutive securities 695,546 822,063
Weighted average dilutive
shares 1,027,499,973 1,027,130,136
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Net income  per average share
attributable to
common stockholders - Basic $ 0.24 $ 0.09
Net income  per average share
attributable to
common stockholders -
Diluted $ 0.24 $ 0.09

11.  Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock incentive plan to provide incentives to its independent directors and
employees of FIDAC and its affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attract, reward and retain personnel and other service
providers, and to align their interest with the common share investors.  The incentive plan authorizes the
Compensation Committee of the board of directors to grant awards, including incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, restricted shares and other types of incentive awards.  The specific award granted to an individual is
based upon, in part, the individual’s position within FIDAC, the individual’s position within the Company, his or her
contribution to the Company’s performance, as well as the recommendations of FIDAC.  The incentive plan authorizes
the granting of options or other awards for an aggregate of the greater of 8.0% of the outstanding shares of the
Company’s common stock up to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restricted stock awards in the amount of 1,301,000 shares to FIDAC’s
employees and the Company’s independent directors.  The awards to the independent directors vested on the date of
grant and the awards to FIDAC’s employees vest quarterly over a period of 10 years.  Of these shares, as of September
30, 2012, 637,000 shares have vested and 46,000 shares were forfeited.  As of September 30, 2012 there was $11.8
million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the long term incentive plan, based on the closing price of the shares on the grant date.  As of
September 30, 2012 there was $1.8 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to non-vested
share-based compensation arrangements granted under the long term incentive plan, based on the closing price of the
shares at the quarter end.  That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 5.3 years.
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The total fair value of shares vested, less those forfeited, during the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September
30, 2011 was $74 thousand and $111 thousand, respectively, based on the closing price of the stock on the vesting
date.  The total fair value of shares vested, less those forfeited, during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011 was $244 thousand and $361 thousand, respectively.  For the quarters ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, compensation expense associated with the amortization of the fair value of the restricted
stock was approximately $75 thousand and $112 thousand, respectively.  For the nine months ended September 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, compensation expense associated with the amortization of the fair value of the
restricted stock was approximately $242 thousand and $360 thousand, respectively.

The Company’s independent directors receive a fixed dollar amount of the Company’s common stock in return for
services provided to the Company.  Equity based awards granted to the independent directors vest during the year of
service.  For the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the Company recognized $75 thousand
and $68 thousand, respectively, of stock based compensation to independent directors.  For the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the Company recognized $225 thousand and $203 thousand,
respectively, of stock based compensation to independent directors.

The following table presents information with respect to the Company’s restricted stock awards during the quarters and
nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011:

For the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Unvested shares
outstanding - beginning
of period 695,200 17.72 821,600 17.72
Granted - - - -
Vested (31,383 ) 17.72 (31,374 ) 17.72
Forfeited (217 ) 17.72 (226 ) 17.72
Unvested shares
outstanding - end of
period 663,600 17.72 790,000 17.72

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

Number
of

Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Number
of

Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Unvested shares
outstanding - beginning
of period 758,400 17.72 884,800 17.72
Granted - - - -
Vested (94,202 ) 17.72 (93,074 ) 17.72
Forfeited (598 ) 17.72 (1,726 ) 17.72

663,600 17.72 790,000 17.72
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Unvested shares
outstanding - end of
period

12.  Income Taxes

For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company was qualified to be taxed as a REIT under
Code Sections 856 through 860.  As a REIT, the Company is not subject to federal income tax to the extent that it
makes qualifying distributions of taxable income to its stockholders.  To maintain qualification as a REIT, the
Company must distribute at least 90% of its annual REIT taxable income to its shareholders and meet certain other
requirements such as assets it may hold, income it may generate and its shareholder composition.  It is generally the
Company’s policy to distribute to its shareholders all of the Company’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which the Company is subject to tax-filing obligations recognize the
Company’s status as a REIT, and therefore, the Company generally does not pay income tax in such jurisdictions.  The
Company may, however, be subject to certain minimum state and local tax filing fees and our taxable REIT
subsidiaries are subject to federal, state, and local taxes.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 the Company recorded no income tax expense and during the quarter
ended September 30, 2011 the Company recorded income tax benefit of $171 thousand.  During the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 the Company recorded income tax expense of $2 thousand and during the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 the Company recorded income tax expense of $645 thousand.

In general, common stock cash dividends declared by the Company will be considered ordinary income to
stockholders for income tax purposes.  From time to time, a portion of the Company’s dividends may be characterized
as capital gains or return of capital.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from its combined federal, state and city corporate statutory tax rate primarily
due to the deduction of dividend distributions required to be paid under Code Section 857(a).

The Company’s 2010, 2011 and 2012 federal, state and local tax returns remain open for examination.
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13.  Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market risk are credit risk and interest rate risk.  The Company is subject to
interest rate risk in connection with its investments in Agency and Non-Agency RMBS, residential mortgage loans,
and borrowings under repurchase agreements.  When the Company assumes interest rate risk, it attempts to minimize
interest rate risk through asset selection, hedging and matching the income earned on mortgage assets with the cost of
related liabilities.  The Company attempts to minimize credit risk through due diligence and asset selection by
purchasing loans underwritten to agreed-upon specifications of selected originators.  The Company has established a
whole loan target market including prime borrowers with FICO scores generally greater than 650, Alt-A
documentation, geographic diversification, owner-occupied property, and moderate loan-to-value ratios.  These
factors are considered to be important indicators of credit risk.

By using derivative hedging instruments and repurchase agreements, the Company is exposed to counterparty credit
risk if counterparties to the contracts do not perform as expected. If a counterparty fails to perform on a derivative
hedging instrument, the Company’s counterparty credit risk is equal to the amount reported as a derivative asset on its
balance sheet to the extent that amount exceeds collateral obtained from the counterparty or, if in a net liability
position, the extent to which collateral posted exceeds the liability to the counterparty. The amounts reported as a
derivative asset/(liability) are derivative contracts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the extent subject to master netting
arrangements, net of derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the same counterparty and collateral received/(pledged).
If the counterparty fails to perform on a repurchase agreement, the Company is exposed to a loss to the extent that the
fair value of collateral pledged exceeds the liability to the counterparty.  The Company attempts to minimize
counterparty credit risk by evaluating and monitoring the counterparty’s credit, executing master netting arrangements
and obtaining collateral, and executing contracts and agreements with multiple counterparties to reduce exposure to a
single counterparty, where appropriate.

14.  Management Agreement and Related Party Transactions

The Company entered into a management agreement with FIDAC, which provided for an initial term through
December 31, 2010 with an automatic one-year extension option and subject to certain termination rights.  The
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors renewed the management agreement through December 31,
2013.  In 2011 and 2010, the Company paid FIDAC a quarterly management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of the
gross Stockholders’ Equity (as defined in the management agreement) of the Company.  Effective November 28, 2012,
the management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annum of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reduction will remain in
effect until the Company is current on all of its filings required under applicable securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011
were $13.1 million and $13.3 million, respectively. Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 were $38.9 million and $39.2 million, respectively.

Under the management agreement, the Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurred under the
management agreement.  In addition, the management agreement permits FIDAC to require the Company to pay for
its pro rata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, office furniture, equipment, machinery and other office, internal and
overhead expenses that FIDAC incurred in connection with the Company’s operations.  These expenses are allocated
between FIDAC and the Company based on the ratio of the Company’s proportion of gross assets compared to the
gross assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at each quarter end.  FIDAC and the Company will modify this
allocation methodology, subject to the approval of the Company’s board of directors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if the Company becomes very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC’s other funds and
accounts).  During the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012 the Company reimbursed FIDAC
approximately $105 thousand and $345 thousand for such expenses. During the quarter and nine months ended
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September 30, 2011, the Company reimbursed FIDAC approximately $166 thousand and $482 thousand for such
expenses.

Because of the Restatement, the Company and FIDAC amended the management agreement on March 8, 2013.  In the
amendment, the reduction in the management fee was memorialized.  In addition, FIDAC agreed to pay all past and
future expenses that the Company and/or the Audit Committee of the Company incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s
accounting policy related to the application of GAAP to its Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restate
the Company’s financial statements for the period covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”); and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholder derivative demands arising from the Evaluation
and/or the Restatement Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however, that FIDAC’s obligation to pay expenses applies
only to expenses not paid by the Company’s insurers under its insurance policies.  Expenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respect to auditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged by the Company
and/or the Audit Committee of the Company for the Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigation. The amount
paid by FIDAC related to these expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 is $1.9 million,
respectively, and is presented on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as Expense
recoveries from Manager.
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The amendment also provides that the independent directors or the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
common stock (other than those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elect to terminate the management agreement
upon 30 days notice at any time in their sole discretion without the payment of a termination fee.  The amendment
also provides that the Company may terminate the management agreement effective immediately if (i) FIDAC
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement against the Company, (ii) there is an event of
any gross negligence on the part of FIDAC in the performance of its duties under the management agreement, (iii)
there is a commencement of any proceeding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissolution
of FIDAC, or (v) FIDAC is convicted of (including a plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an administrative services agreement with RCap Securities Inc.,
(“RCap”).  RCap is a SEC-registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly that clears the Company’s
securities trades in return for normal and customary fees that RCap charges for such services.  RCap may also provide
brokerage services to the Company from time to time.  During the quarter and nine months ended September 30,
2012, fees paid to RCap were $41 thousand and $115 thousand, respectively. During the quarter and nine months
ended September 30, 2011, fees paid to RCap were $58 thousand and $113 thousand, respectively.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, 31,600 shares of restricted stock issued by
the Company to FIDAC’s employees vested.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30,
2011 94,800 shares of restricted stock issued by the Company to FIDAC’s employees vested.

15.  Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of business.  In connection with certain re-securitization transactions engaged in by the Company, the
Company has the obligation under certain circumstances to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breach of certain
representations and warranties.  Management is not aware of any contingencies that require accrual or disclosure
under ASC 450, Contingencies, as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

16.  Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors declared common stock cash dividends of $0.09 per common share for the fourth quarter of
2012, and the first three quarters of 2013.  For the four quarters of 2012, the Company paid cash dividends totaling
$0.38 per common share, and for the first three quarters of 2013, the Company paid cash dividends totaling $0.27 per
common share.
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Item 2.  Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we” or “our”) financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes to those statements included in Item 1 of this
quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this report that are subject to risks and uncertainties. These forward-looking
statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our business, financial condition, liquidity,
results of operations, plans and objectives. When we use the words ‘‘believe,’’ ‘‘expect,’’ ‘‘anticipate,’’ ‘‘estimate,’’ ‘‘plan,’’
‘‘continue,’’ ‘‘intend,’’ ‘‘should,’’ ‘‘may,’’ ‘‘would,’’ ‘‘will’’ or similar expressions, we intend to identify forward-looking
statements.  Statements regarding the following subjects, among others, are forward-looking by their nature:

● our business and investment strategy;

● our ability to maintain existing financing arrangements, obtain future financing arrangements and the terms of
such arrangements, particularly in light of the Restatement and other matters discussed in this Form 10-Q;

● our ability to timely file our periodic reports with the SEC;

● our expectations regarding materiality or significance;

● the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures;

● material weaknesses in our internal controls over financial reporting;

● additional information that may arise from the preparation of our financial statements;

● inadequacy of or weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting of which we are not currently aware
or which have not been detected;

● general volatility of the securities markets in which we invest;

● the impact of and changes to various government programs;

● our expected investments;

● changes in the value of our investments;

● interest rate mismatches between our investments and our borrowings used to finance such purchases;

● changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayment rates;

● effects of interest rate caps on our adjustable-rate investments;

● rates of default, delinquencies or decreased recovery rates on our investments;

● prepayments of the mortgage and other loans underlying our mortgage-backed or other asset-backed securities;
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● the degree to which our hedging strategies may or may not protect us from interest rate volatility;

● the potential delisting of our common stock from the New York Stock Exchange
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● impact of and changes in governmental regulations, tax law and rates, accounting guidance, and similar matters;

● availability of investment opportunities in real estate-related and other securities;

● availability of qualified personnel;

● estimates relating to our ability to make distributions to our stockholders in the future;

● our understanding of our competition;

● market trends in our industry, interest rates, the debt securities markets or the general economy;

● our ability to maintain our classification as a REIT for federal income tax purposes; and

● our ability to maintain our exemption from registration under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

The forward-looking statements are based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectations of our future performance,
taking into account all information currently available to us. You should not place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements. These beliefs, assumptions and expectations can change as a result of many possible
events or factors, not all of which are known to us. Some of these factors are described under the caption ‘‘Risk Factors’’
in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.  If a change
occurs, our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations may vary materially from those expressed
in our forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made.
New risks and uncertainties arise from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict those events or how they may
affect us.  Except as required by law, we are not obligated to, and do not intend to, update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Special Note Regarding this Form 10-Q

Unless otherwise indicated herein or as may be required by law (including, without limitation, to reflect the effects of
the Restatement, as defined below), the disclosure included in this Form 10-Q is presented as of September 30,
2012.  Accordingly, this Form 10-Q does not reflect all events occurring after September 30, 2012 (except as required
by law, or as required by ASC 855, Subsequent Events), and we have not undertaken to update each and every item
included in this Form 10-Q to reflect such events.  Therefore, this Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with our
filings we have previously made with the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequent to September 30, 2012.

Restatement

We restated our previously issued (i) Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition included in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2010 and (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit), and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, including the cumulative effect of the restatement on Retained earnings
(accumulated deficit) as of the earliest period presented as part of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2011 (which we refer to as the Restatement). The Restatement also impacted each of the quarters for the periods
beginning with our inception in November 2007 through the quarter ended September 30, 2011. The historical interim
periods included in this Form 10-Q have been restated to reflect the Restatement.

As discussed in Note 2, we corrected amounts previously reported in Total other-than-temporary impairment losses
and the Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
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and Comprehensive Income as the previous presentation was reported on a cumulative basis. The current presentation
reflects only that portion of total other-than-temporary impairments (“OTTI”) that is incremental for the reporting period
by giving consideration to OTTI reported and recognized in prior periods. For the three and nine month periods ended
September 30, 2011, the previously reported Total other-than-temporary impairments losses of $151.3 million and
$293.9 million was reduced by $72.4 million and $132.0 million, respectively.  This reduction was fully offset by an
adjustment to the Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).
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In our Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, we did not present total OTTI correctly when total cumulative
credit losses were greater than total OTTI in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.
Total OTTI losses should have been reported net of unrealized gains on a security when they occur in the same period
as a credit loss. The previously reported total OTTI and the portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income
(loss) for three month period ended March 31, 2012 of $57.0 million and $8.6 million, respectively, were each
reduced by $24.9 million. Additionally, we noted an error in the presentation of reclassification items within
Comprehensive Income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the three
months ended March 31, 2012. This error resulted in a reduction of $47.1 million in Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities, net and a reduction in Reclassification adjustment for net realized losses (gains) included
in net income (loss) of $15.5 million. These two reductions are fully offset by an increase in Reclassification
adjustment for net losses included in net income (loss) for other than temporary credit impairment losses of $62.6
million.  The errors noted related to March 31, 2012 will be corrected in our future filings that present such
information. The nine month period ended September 30, 2012 reflects the correction of the March 31, 2012 errors.
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the previously reported total OTTI losses of $418.1
million and $295.4 million, respectively, and the portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income of $61.0 million and $163.5 million,
respectively, will be reduced by approximately $176.2 million and $255.7 million, respectively, in our 2012 Form
10-K.

These corrections had no impact on any previously reported Net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses, Net
income (loss), Other comprehensive income (loss), Net income (loss) per share available to common shareholders or
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced operations on November 21, 2007. We acquire, either directly or
indirectly through our subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, residential mortgage loans,
commercial mortgage loans, real estate related securities and various other asset classes.  We are externally managed
by Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which we refer to as FIDAC or our Manager.  FIDAC is a
fixed-income investment management company that is registered as an investment adviser with the SEC.  FIDAC is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly.  FIDAC has a broad range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are mortgage pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgage
obligations, or CMOs, and other RMBS representing interests in or obligations backed by pools of mortgage loans
issued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debt
obligations, or CDOs, and other real estate related investments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns to our investors over the long-term, primarily through
dividends and secondarily through capital appreciation.  We intend to achieve this objective by investing in a
diversified investment portfolio of RMBS, residential mortgage loans, real estate-related securities and various other
asset classes, subject to maintaining our REIT status and exemption from registration under the 1940 Act.  The
RMBS, ABS, CMBS, and CDOs we purchase may include investment-grade and non-investment grade classes,
including the BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated classes.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifying assets within our target asset classes.  Our Manager makes
investment decisions based on various factors, including expected cash yield, relative value, risk-adjusted returns,
current and projected credit fundamentals, current and projected macroeconomic considerations, current and projected
supply and demand, credit and market risk concentration limits, liquidity, cost of financing and financing availability,
as well as maintaining our REIT qualification and our exemption from registration under the 1940 Act.
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Over time, we will modify our investment allocation strategy as market conditions change to seek to maximize the
returns from our investment portfolio.  We believe this strategy, combined with our Manager’s experience, will enable
us to pay dividends and achieve capital appreciation through various changing interest rate and credit cycles and
provide attractive long-term returns to investors.
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Our targeted asset classes and the principal investments we have made and in which we may in the future invest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments
RMBS ●      Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and non-investment grade classes,

including the BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated classes

●      Agency RMBS

●      Interest-only RMBS

Residential Mortgage
Loans

●      Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that conform to the underwriting
guidelines of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agency Guidelines; and
jumbo prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that conform to the Agency
Guidelines except as to loan size

●      Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that may have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringent than the documentation standards applied
by certain other first lien mortgage loan purchase programs, such as the Agency
Guidelines, but have one or more compensating factors such as a borrower with a strong
credit or mortgage history or significant assets

●      FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans that comply with the underwriting
guidelines of the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or Department of Veteran
Affairs (VA) and which are guaranteed by the FHA or VA, respectively

●      Mortgage servicing rights associated with residential mortgage loans, which reflect
the value of the future stream of expected cash flows from the contractual rights to service
a given pool of residential mortgage loans

Commercial Mortgage
Loans

●      First or second lien loans secured by multifamily properties, which are residential
rental properties consisting of five or more dwelling units; and mixed residential or other
commercial properties; retail properties; office properties; or industrial properties, which
may or may not conform to the Agency Guidelines

Other Asset-Backed
Securities

●      CMBS

●      Debt and equity tranches of CDOs

●      Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investment-grade and non-investment
grade classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated classes
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Hedging Instruments ●     Swaps

●      Swaptions

●      Futures

●      Index options

●      Mortgage options

Since we commenced operations in November 2007, we have focused our investment activities on acquiring
Non-Agency and Agency RMBS and on purchasing residential mortgage loans that have been originated by select
originators, including the retail lending operations of leading commercial banks.  Our investment portfolio at
September 30, 2012 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS.   At September 30, 2012, based on the outstanding
principal balance of our interest earning assets, approximately 75.1% of our investment portfolio was Non-Agency
RMBS, 15.7% of our investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and 9.2% of our investment portfolio was securitized
residential mortgage loans.  At December 31, 2011, based on the outstanding principal balance of our interest earning
assets, approximately 75.4% of our investment portfolio was Non-Agency RMBS, 21.1% of our investment portfolio
was Agency RMBS, and 3.5% of our investment portfolio was securitized residential mortgage loans. We expect that
over the near term, our investment portfolio will continue to be weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS, subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Act exemption.

Following our initial public offering we initially engaged in transactions with residential mortgage lending operations
of leading commercial banks and other originators in which we identified and re-underwrote residential mortgage
loans owned by such entities, and purchased and securitized such residential mortgage loans.  In the past we have also
acquired formerly AAA-rated Non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-securitized those securities.  We sold the
resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS and retained the rated or unrated mezzanine RMBS.  More recently we have
engaged in transactions with residential mortgage lending operations of leading commercial banks and other
originators in which we identified and re-underwrote residential mortgage loans owned by such entities, and rather
than purchasing and securitizing such residential mortgage loans, we and the originator or another entity, such as an
investment bank, structured the securitization and we purchased the resulting mezzanine and subordinate Non-Agency
RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take advantage of opportunities in the current interest rate and credit
environment.  We expect to adjust our strategy to changing market conditions by shifting our asset allocations across
these various asset classes as interest rate and credit cycles change over time.  We believe that our strategy, combined
with FIDAC’s experience, will enable us to pay dividends and achieve capital appreciation throughout changing
market cycles.  We expect to take a long-term view of assets and liabilities, and our reported earnings and estimates of
the fair value of our investments at the end of a financial reporting period will not significantly impact our objective of
providing attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockholders over the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potential returns and to finance the acquisition of our assets.  Our income is
generated primarily by the difference, or net spread, between the income we earn on our assets and the cost of our
borrowings.  We expect to finance our investments using a variety of financing sources including, when available,
repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizations, commercial paper and term financing CDOs.  We may
manage our debt and interest rate risk by utilizing interest rate hedges, such as interest rate swaps, caps, options and
futures to reduce the effect of interest rate fluctuations related to our financing sources.

Edgar Filing: CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORP - Form 10-Q

80



We have elected and believe we are organized and have operated in a manner that qualifies us to be taxed as a REIT
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and regulations promulgated thereunder (or the Code)  If we
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income that is
distributed to our stockholders.  Furthermore, substantially all of our assets consist of qualified REIT real estate assets
(of the type described in Code Section 856(c)(5)).  We calculate that at least 75% of our assets were qualified REIT
assets, as defined in the Code, for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and for the year ended December 31,
2011.  We also calculate that our revenues qualified for the 75% REIT income test and for the 95% REIT income test
for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended December 31, 2011.  We also met all REIT requirements
regarding the ownership of our common stock and the distribution of our REIT taxable income.  Therefore, for the
quarter ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended December 31, 2011, we believe that we qualified as a REIT
under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from registration under the 1940 Act, and therefore we are required to invest a
substantial majority of our assets in loans secured by mortgages on real estate and real estate-related assets.  Subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Act exemption, we do not have any limitations on the amounts we
may invest in any of our targeted asset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentage of our assets that will be invested in each asset class or whether we
will invest in other classes of investments.  We may change our investment strategy and policies without a vote of our
stockholders.
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Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be affected by various factors, many of which are beyond our control.  Our
results of operations will primarily depend on, among other things, the level of our net interest income, the market
value of our assets, and the supply of and demand for such assets.  Economic trends, both macro as well as those
directly affecting the residential housing market, and the supply and demand of RMBS may affect our operations and
financial results.  We also evaluate market information regarding current residential mortgage loan underwriting
criteria and loan defaults to manage our portfolio of assets, leverage, and debt.

Our net interest income, which reflects the amortization of purchase premiums and accretion of discounts, varies
primarily as a result of changes in interest rates, borrowing costs, credit impairment losses, and prepayment speeds,
which is a measurement of how quickly borrowers pay down the unpaid principal balance on their mortgage
loans.  Further description of these factors is provided below.

Prepayment Speeds.  Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constant Prepayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to
interest rates, the type of investment, conditions in financial markets, and other factors, none of which can be
predicted with any certainty.  In general, when interest rates rise, it is relatively less attractive for borrowers to
refinance their mortgage loans, and as a result, prepayment speeds tend to decrease.  When interest rates fall,
prepayment speeds tend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of income we earn decreases as the purchase premium on the bonds
amortizes faster than expected.  Conversely, decreases in prepayment speeds result in increased income and can
extend the period over which we amortize the purchase premium.

For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchased at a discount, as prepayment speeds increase, the amount of
income we earn increases from the acceleration of the accretion of the discount into interest income. Conversely,
decreases in prepayment speeds result in decreased income as the accretion of the purchase discount into interest
income occurs over a longer period.  Recently, the correlation between interest rates and prepayment has not followed
normal trends for certain asset classes.  Due to economic hardship, some borrowers have been unable to refinance
their loans as underwriting standards are more stringent and credit conditions remain restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate Environment.  As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayment speeds generally
decrease.  Rising interest rates, however, increase our financing costs which may result in a net negative impact on our
net interest income.  In addition, if we acquire Agency and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset
adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and five-year hybrid ARMs, such interest rate increases could result
in decreases in our net investment income, as the increase in our adjustable rate assets may increase slower than our
adjustable rate financing.  We expect that our fixed-rate assets would decline in value in a rising interest rate
environment and that our net interest spreads on fixed rate assets could decline in a rising interest rate environment to
the extent such assets are financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk.  One of our strategic focuses is on acquiring distressed Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgraded
because of defaults in the mortgages collateralizing such RMBS.  When we acquire such RMBS we attempt to
purchase it at a price such that its loss-adjusted return profile is in line with our targeted yields.  We retain the risk of
potential credit losses on all of the residential mortgage loans we hold in our portfolio as well as all of the subordinate
Non-Agency RMBS.  We attempt to mitigate credit risk in the asset selection process.  Prior to the purchase of
investments, we conduct a credit-risk based analysis of the collateral securing our investment that includes examining
borrower characteristics, geographic concentrations, current and projected delinquencies, current and projected
severities, and actual and expected prepayment speeds among other characteristics to estimate expected losses. We
also acquire assets which we believe to be of high credit quality. We believe this strategy will generally keep our
credit losses and financing costs low.

Edgar Filing: CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORP - Form 10-Q

82



Size of Investment Portfolio.  The size of our investment portfolio, as measured by the aggregate unpaid principal
balance of our mortgage loans and aggregate principal balance of our mortgage related securities and the other assets
we own, is also a key revenue driver.  Generally, as the size of our investment portfolio grows, the amount of interest
income we receive increases.  The larger investment portfolio, however, may result in increased expenses if we incur
additional interest expense to finance the purchase of our assets.
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Financial Condition

Estimated Economic Book Value

This Management Discussion and Analysis section contains analysis and discussion of financial information that
utilizes or presents ratios based on GAAP book value.  The table and discussion below present our estimated
economic book value.  We calculate and disclose this non-GAAP measurement because we believe it represents an
estimate of the fair value of the assets we own or are able to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise monetize.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitizations and re-securitization transactions where we have determined
that we are the primary beneficiary.  In these transactions, we transferred assets to the trusts, which issued tranches of
senior and subordinate notes or certificates.  We sold the senior tranches and therefore have no continuing
involvement in these trusts other than being a holder of notes or certificates issued by the trusts, with the same rights
as other holders of the notes or certificates, except as it relates to CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2. As it
relates solely to CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2, we have the ability to approve loan modifications and
determine the course of action to be taken as it relates to loans in technical default, including whether or not to
proceed with foreclosure.  The notes and certificates we own that were issued by the trusts are largely subordinated
interests in those trusts.  The trusts have no recourse to our assets other than pursuant to a breach by us of the
transaction documents related to the transfer of the assets by us to the trusts, but are presented as if we own 100% of
the trust.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan securitizations, we present the pre-securitized assets transferred
into the consolidated trusts in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as Non-Agency RMBS transferred
to consolidated VIEs or Securitized loans held for investment. Past securitization RMBS assets sold are presented as
liabilities in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as Securitized debt collateralized by non-Agency
RMBS and Securitized loan debt, collateralized by loans held for investment.  We have presented the underlying
securities we transferred to the trusts for the calculation of GAAP book value at fair value and recorded the
corresponding liability for the notes or certificates sold to third parties at amortized cost.  Fair value adjustments that
are not credit related are recorded in Other Comprehensive Income. Credit related impairments are deemed
other-than-temporary and are recorded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetize or pledge the RMBS or loans we transferred into the trusts, we also
present our estimated economic book value.  We believe this measure represents the estimated value of the securities
issued by these trusts that we own.  In contrast to GAAP book value, our estimated economic book value considers
only the assets we own or are able to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise monetize.  To determine our estimated economic
book value, we consider only the fair value of the notes or certificates issued by the securitization and re-securitization
trusts that we actually own.  Accordingly, our estimated economic book value does not include assets or liabilities for
which we have no direct ownership, specifically the notes or certificates of the securitization and re-securitization
trusts that were sold to third parties.   We believe this estimate represents the value of the assets that we own and are
able to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise monetize as of the measurement date.

At September 30, 2012 the difference between GAAP book value and estimated economic book value was determined
to be $384.6 million.  At December 31, 2011 the difference between GAAP book value and estimated economic book
value was determined to be $159.2 million.  This difference is primarily driven by the value of the RMBS assets we
have retained in these re-securitization transactions as compared to the value of consolidated loans and securities net
of RMBS assets sold and recorded at amortized cost in these transactions.  In these re-securitization transactions, we
retained the subordinated, typically non-rated, first loss notes or certificates issued by the securitization trusts.  These
securities are complex, typically locked out as to principal repayment, relatively illiquid, and do not necessarily
appreciate or depreciate in tandem with the broader Non-Agency RMBS market or with the loans on securities owned
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by the trusts.  The tables below present the adjustments to GAAP book value necessary to reflect our calculation of
estimated economic book value as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
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September 30, 2012

GAAP
Book Value Adjustments

Estimated
Economic

Book Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair value
 Senior $ 82 $ - $ 82
 Senior interest-only 128,868 - 128,868
 Subordinated 509,061 - 509,061
 Subordinated interest-only 16,867 - 16,867
 RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs 3,235,572 (1,626,553 ) 1,609,019
Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities, at
fair value 1,997,211 - 1,997,211
Securitized loans held for investment, net
of allowance for loan losses 1,136,923 (1,044,696 ) 92,227
Other assets 514,408 - 514,408
Total assets $ 7,538,992 $ (2,671,249 ) $ 4,867,743

Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS 1,658,906 - 1,658,906
Securitized debt, collateralized by
Non-Agency RMBS 1,252,752 (1,252,752 ) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans
held for investment 1,033,925 (1,033,925 ) -
Other liabilities 175,220 - 175,220
Total liabilities 4,120,803 (2,286,677 ) 1,834,126

Total stockholders' equity 3,418,189 (384,572 ) 3,033,617
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 7,538,992 $ (2,671,249 ) $ 4,867,743

Book Value Per Share $ 3.33 $ (0.37 ) $ 2.96
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December 31, 2011

GAAP
Book Value Adjustments

Estimated
Economic Book

Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair value
 Senior $ 1,020 $ - $ 1,020
 Senior interest-only 188,679 - 188,679
 Subordinated 606,895 - 606,895
 Subordinated interest-only 22,019 - 22,019
 RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs 3,270,332 (1,789,514 ) 1,480,818
Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities, at
fair value 3,144,531 - 3,144,531
Securitized loans held for investment, net
of allowance for loan losses 256,632 - 256,632
Other assets 257,027 - 257,027
Total assets $ 7,747,135 $ (1,789,514 ) $ 5,957,621

Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS 2,672,989 - 2,672,989
Securitized debt, collateralized by
Non-Agency RMBS 1,630,276 (1,630,276 ) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans
held for investment 212,778 - 212,778
Other liabilities 183,473 - 183,473
Total liabilities 4,699,516 (1,630,276 ) 3,069,240

Total stockholders' equity 3,047,619 (159,238 ) 2,888,381
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 7,747,135 $ (1,789,514 ) $ 5,957,621

Book Value Per Share $ 2.97 $ (0.15 ) $ 2.81

Our estimate of economic book value has important limitations.  Our estimate of fair value is as of a point in time and
subject to significant judgment.  Should we sell the assets in our portfolio, we may realize materially different
proceeds from the sale than we have estimated as of the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book value described above is used by management to understand the fair
value of the assets we own and the liabilities for which we are legally obligated, and is presented for informational use
only.  The estimated economic book value should not be viewed in isolation and is not a substitute for book value
computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, on an aggregate basis, we purchased $17.6 million and received $317.7
million in principal payments related to our Agency and Non-Agency RMBS portfolio.  Our securitized loan portfolio
received $183.8 million in paydowns during the quarter ended September 30, 2012.
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The following table summarizes certain characteristics of our portfolio at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011.

September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

Interest earning assets at
period-end * $ 7,024,584 $ 7,490,108
Interest bearing liabilities at
period-end $ 3,945,583 $ 4,516,043
Leverage at period-end 1.2:1 1.5:1
Leverage at period-end
(recourse) 0.5:1 0.9:1
Portfolio Composition, at
principal value
      Non-Agency RMBS 75.1 % 75.4 %
          Senior 0.0 % 0.0 %
          Senior, interest only 25.4 % 26.1 %
          Subordinated 8.7 % 9.7 %
          Subordinated, interest
only 2.1 % 1.9 %
          RMBS transferred to
consolidated
       variable interest entities 38.9 % 37.7 %
      Agency RMBS 15.7 % 21.1 %
      Securitized loans 9.2 % 3.5 %
      Fixed-rate percentage of
portfolio 75.1 % 74.9 %
      Adjustable-rate percentage
of portfolio 24.9 % 25.1 %

*     Excludes cash and cash
equivalents.

The following table presents details of each asset class in our portfolio at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011.  The principal or notional value represents the interest income earning balance of each class.  The weighted
average figures are weighted by each investment’s respective principal/notional value in the asset class.

September 30, 2012
Principal

or Notional
Value

 at
Period-End
(dollars in
thousands)

Weighted
Average

Amortized
Cost
Basis

Weighted
Average

Fair
Value

Weighted
Average
Coupon

Weighted
Average

Yield
at

Period-End
(1)

Weighted
Average

3
Month
CPR at

Period-End

Weighted
Average

12
Month
CPR at

Period-End

Weighted
Average

Delinquency
Pipeline

60+

Weighted
Average

Loss
Severity

(2)

Weighted
Average
Credit

Enhancement

Principal
Writedowns

During
Period
(dollars

in
thousands)

Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities
   Senior $135 $58.37 $60.88 0.00% 11.26% 0.10 % 42.20% 0.00 % 0.00 % 12.85% $-

$3,120,432 $4.48 $4.13 1.74% 8.81 % 18.01% 17.43% 20.60% 51.84% 0.00 % $-
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   Senior, interest
only
   Subordinated $1,074,560 $44.41 $47.37 3.17% 10.83% 19.70% 18.52% 18.98% 51.43% 15.26% $15,548
   Subordinated,
interest only $264,052 $6.59 $6.39 2.45% 5.96 % 14.95% 14.83% 21.63% 45.45% 0.00 % $-
    RMBS
transferred to
    consolidated
variable
    interest entities $4,795,819 $53.48 $68.87 4.96% 15.44% 14.94% 14.24% 30.34% 58.68% 2.61 % $61,081
Agency
Mortgage-Backed
Securities $1,934,283 $103.14 $108.78 4.65% 3.61 % 25.78% 21.94% NA NA 0.00 % $-
Securitized loans $1,134,994 $101.17 $101.65 4.89% 4.37 % 43.51% 5.43 % 1.03 % 5.02 % 10.93% $753

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end.
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to date, utilizing widest data set available (i.e., life-time losses, 12-month loss,
etc.).

December 31, 2011
Principal

or Notional
Value

at
Period-End
(dollars in
thousands)

Weighted
Average

Amortized
Cost
Basis

Weighted
Average

Fair
Value

Weighted
Average
Coupon

Weighted
Average

Yield
at

Period-End
(1)

Weighted
Average

3
Month
CPR at

Period-End

Weighted
Average

12
Month
CPR at

Period-End

Weighted
Average

Delinquency
Pipeline

60+

Weighted
Average

Loss
Severity

(2)

Weighted
Average
Credit

Enhancement

Principal
Writedowns

During
Period

(dollars in
thousands)

Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities
   Senior $1,115 $95.13 $91.55 1.02% 2.95 % 20.23% 14.55% 30.99% 68.49% 75.11 % $-
   Senior, interest
only $3,734,452 $5.34 $5.05 1.96% 13.28% 15.80% 17.02% 19.77% 49.98% 0.00 % $-
   Subordinated $1,378,891 $47.44 $44.01 3.44% 9.57 % 16.48% 17.56% 19.48% 50.07% 19.03 % $19,964
   Subordinated,
interest only $277,560 $7.89 $7.93 2.94% 9.93 % 13.31% 15.07% 24.30% 45.80% 0.00 % $-
    RMBS
transferred to
    consolidated
variable
    interest entities $5,265,128 $55.14 $62.11 5.32% 14.56% 12.40% 14.70% 32.26% 57.61% 4.15 % $161,263
Agency
Mortgage-Backed
Securities $2,937,041 $103.07 $107.06 4.66% 3.83 % 28.49% 24.59% NA NA 100.00% $-
Securitized loans $268,122 $100.92 $83.14 3.05% 4.77 % 24.91% 23.51% 6.17 % 39.86% 8.86 % $1,323

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end.
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to date, utilizing widest data set available (i.e., life-time losses, 12-month loss,
etc.).

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-Agency RMBS that are not of high credit quality, a portion of the
original purchase discount is designated as Accretable Discount, which reflects the purchase discount expected to be
accreted into interest income, and a portion is designated as Non-Accretable Difference, which represents the
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contractual principal on the security that is not expected to be collected. The amount designated as Non-Accretable
Difference may be adjusted over time, based on the actual performance of the security, its underlying collateral, actual
and projected cash flow from such collateral, economic conditions and other factors. If the performance of a security
is more favorable than previously estimated, a portion of the amount designated as Non-Accretable Difference may be
accreted into interest income over time. Conversely, if the performance of a security is less favorable than previously
estimated, the amounts designated as Non-Accretable Difference may increase, resulting in an other-than-temporary
impairment loss.
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The following table presents changes to Accretable Discount and Non-Accretable Difference as it pertains to our
entire Non-Agency RMBS portfolio for assets with purchase discounts for the quarters and nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011.

For the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

(dollars in thousands)
Accretable
Discount

  Non-Accretable
Difference

Accretable
Discount

Non-Accretable
Difference

Balance at beginning of
period $ 1,202,957 $ 1,773,195 $ 1,273,274 $ 1,657,474
Accretion of discount (36,770 ) - (41,836 ) -
Principal Writedowns - (83,948 ) - (47,234 )
Sales (81,690 ) (10,058 ) (61 ) -
Net other-than-temporary
credit impairment losses - 10,014 - 150,367
Transfers from credit
reserve 44,888 (44,888 ) 133,908 (133,908 )
Transfers to credit reserve (10,907 ) 10,907 (75,985 ) 75,985
  Balance at end of period $ 1,118,478 $ 1,655,222 $ 1,289,300 $ 1,702,684

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

(dollars in thousands)
Accretable
Discount

Non-Accretable
Difference

Accretable
Discount

Non-Accretable
Difference

Balance at beginning of
period $ 1,176,019 $ 1,931,930 $ 1,098,061 $ 1,879,475
Accretion of discount (111,297 ) - (99,483 ) -
Principal Writedowns - (229,888 ) - (133,211 )
Purchases 29,562 16,063 29,020 71,892
Sales (47,751 ) (115,003 ) 4,852 (104,342 )
Net other-than-temporary
credit impairment losses - 124,065 - 245,720
Transfers from credit
reserve 152,821 (152,821 ) 472,106 (472,106 )
Transfers to credit reserve (80,876 ) 80,876 (215,256 ) 215,256
  Balance at end of period $ 1,118,478 $ 1,655,222 $ 1,289,300 $ 1,702,684

Exposure to European Financial Counterparties

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is financed with repurchase agreements.  We secure our borrowings under
these agreements by pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lender. The collateral we pledge exceeds the
amount of the borrowings under each agreement, typically with the extent of over-collateralization being at least 3%
of the amount borrowed.  If the counterparty to the repurchase agreement defaults on its obligations and we are not
able to recover our pledged assets, we are at risk of losing the over-collateralized amount.  The amount of this
exposure is the difference between the amount loaned to us plus interest due to the counterparty and the fair value of
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the collateral pledged by us to the lender including accrued interest receivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage our interest rate risks.  Under these swap agreements, we pledge Agency
RMBS as collateral as part of a margin arrangement for interest rate swaps that are in an unrealized loss position.  If a
counterparty were to default on its obligation, we would be exposed to a loss to a swap counterparty to the extent that
the amount of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded the unrealized loss on the associated swaps and we were not able
to recover the excess collateral.

Over the past several years, several large European financial institutions have experienced financial difficulty and
have been either rescued by government assistance or by other large European banks or institutions.  Some of these
financial institutions or their U.S. subsidiaries have provided us financing under repurchase agreements or we have
entered into interest rate swaps with such institutions.  We have entered into repurchase agreements and/or interest
rate swaps with 6 financial institution counterparties as of September 30, 2012 that are either domiciled in Europe or
are a U.S.-based subsidiary of a European-domiciled financial institution.  The following table summarizes our
exposure to such counterparties at September 30, 2012:
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Country

Number
of

Counterparties

Repurchase
Agreement
Financing

Interest Rate
Swaps

at Fair Value Exposure(1)

Exposure as
a

Percentage
of Total
Assets

(dollars in thousands)
France 1 217,157 $ - $ 10,379 0.14 %
Germany 1 - (16,286 ) (16,286 ) -0.22 %
Netherlands 1 260,088 - 12,624 0.17 %
Switzerland 2 270,775 (42,787 ) (27,806 ) -0.37 %
United
Kingdom 1 190,450 - 6,616 0.09 %
Total 6 $ 938,470 $ (59,073 ) $ (14,473 ) -0.19 %

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledged as collateral to each counterparty less the
aggregate of repurchase agreement financing and unrealized loss on swaps for each
counterparty.

At September 30, 2012, we did not use credit default swaps or other forms of credit protection to hedge the exposures
summarized in the table above.

If the European credit crisis continues to impact these major European financial institutions, it is possible that it will
also impact the operations of their U.S. subsidiaries.  Our financings and operations could be adversely affected by
such events.  We monitor our exposure to our repurchase agreement and swap counterparties on a regular basis, using
various methods, including review of recent rating agency actions, financial relief plans, credit spreads or other
developments and by monitoring the amount of cash and securities collateral pledged and the associated loan amount
under repurchase agreements and/or the fair value of swaps with our counterparties.  We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collateral as permitted by the agreements governing our financing arrangements
or interest rate swaps, or may try to take other actions to reduce the amount of our exposure to a counterparty when
necessary.

Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine months Ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

All prior results of operations presented below in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations – Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine months ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011” have been revised to reflect the effects of the Restatement.

For the purpose of computing economic net interest income and ratios relating to cost of funds measures throughout
this report, interest expense includes net interest payments on interest rate swaps, which is presented as Realized gains
(losses) on interest rate swaps in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.  Interest rate
swaps are used to hedge the increase in interest paid on repurchase agreements in a rising rate
environment.  Presenting the net contractual interest payments on interest rate swaps with the interest paid on
interest-bearing liabilities reflects our total contractual interest payments.  Management believes this presentation is
useful to investors because this presentation depicts the economic value of our investment strategy, by showing actual
interest expense and net interest income.  Where indicated, interest expense, including interest payments on interest
rate swaps, is referred to as economic interest expense.  Where indicated, net interest income reflecting interest
payments on interest rate swaps, is referred to as economic net interest income.
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The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAAP measurements reflected in the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

GAAP Net
Interest
Income

Less:
Realized

Net
Losses on
Interest

Rate
Swaps

Economic
Net
Interest
Income (1)

GAAP
Interest
Expense

Add:
Realized

Net
Losses on
Interest

Rate
Swaps

Economic
Interest
Expense

For the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2012 $ 110,340 $ 5,298 $ 105,038 $ 34,356 $ 5,298 $ 39,654
For the Quarter Ended
June 30, 2012 $ 139,571 $ 5,194 $ 134,375 $ 21,953 $ 5,194 $ 27,147
For the Quarter Ended
March 31, 2012 $ 113,293 $ 4,398 $ 108,892 $ 36,375 $ 4,398 $ 40,773
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2011 $ 570,166 $ 15,929 $ 554,223 $ 134,858 $ 15,929 $ 150,787
For the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2011 $ 136,845 $ 4,285 $ 132,559 $ 30,696 $ 4,285 $ 34,981
For the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2011 $ 152,789 $ 4,500 $ 148,289 $ 32,792 $ 4,500 $ 37,292

(1) Excludes cash and
cash equivalents.
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Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average interest earning assets of $12.4 billion and $11.8 billion for the quarters ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, respectively, and $10.6 billion and $11.7 billion for the nine months ended September 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. Our primary source of income is interest income earned on our
assets.  Our interest income was $144.7 million and $185.6 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, respectively, and $455.9 million and $537.5 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. The yield on our portfolio was 4.68% and 6.29% for the quarters ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and 5.71% and 6.12% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  For the quarter ended September 30, 2012 as compared to
the quarter ended September 30, 2011, interest income decreased by $40.9 million due primarily to a decrease in yield
on the portfolio.  The decrease in yield in our portfolio is a result of less higher yielding Non-Agency and Agency
RMBS investments and an increase in lower yielding investments in securitized loans. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2011, interest income decreased by $81.6
million due primarily to a decrease in average interest earning assets of $1.1 billion and lower overall yields on the
portfolio.  The decrease in yield in the portfolio is a result of less higher yielding Non-Agency and Agency RMBS
investments and an increase in lower yielding investments in securitized loans.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $4.4 billion and $6.4 billion and total economic interest expense of $39.7 million
and $37.3 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. We had average
borrowed funds of $4.5 billion and $6.2 billion and total economic interest expense of $107.6 million and $115.8
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  Our average cost of
funds was 3.61% and 2.33% for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. Our
average cost of funds was 3.19% and 2.49% for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011,
respectively.  The economic average cost of funds increased by 128 basis points and the average borrowed funds
decreased by $2.0 billion during the quarter ended September 30, 2012, when compared to the quarter ended
September 30, 2011.  We attribute the increase in the annualized cost of funds to increases in securitized debt
collateralized by loans held for investment, which has a higher cost of funds rate than repurchase agreements and
securitized debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS as well as increased LIBOR rates over the same period of the
prior year.

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finance our assets using repurchase agreements is typically correlated to
LIBOR and the term of the financing.  The table below shows our average borrowed funds, economic interest
expense, average cost of funds (inclusive of realized losses on interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR,
average six-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR relative to average six-month LIBOR, and average cost of
funds relative to average one- and six- month LIBOR.

Average Cost of Funds

Average
Borrowed

Funds

Economic
Interest

Expense (1)

Average
Cost

of
Funds

Average
One-

Month
LIBOR

Average
Six-

Month
LIBOR

Average
One-

Month
LIBOR
Relative

to
Average

Six-Month
LIBOR

Average
Cost

of
Funds

Relative
to

Average
One-Month

LIBOR

Average
Cost of
Funds

Relative
to

Average
Six-Month

LIBOR
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(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)
For the
quarter
ended
September
30, 2012 $ 4,397,212 $ 39,654 3.61 % 0.24 % 0.73 % (0.49 %) 3.37 % 2.88 %
For the
quarter
ended
June 30,
2012 $ 4,718,431 $ 27,147 2.30 % 0.24 % 0.73 % (0.49 %) 2.06 % 1.57 %
For the
quarter
ended
March 31,
2012 $ 4,358,333 $ 40,773 3.74 % 0.26 % 0.76 % (0.50 %) 3.48 % 2.98 %
For the
year ended
December
31, 2011 $ 5,989,117 $ 150,787 2.52 % 0.23 % 0.51 % (0.28 %) 2.29 % 2.01 %
For the
quarter
ended
December
31, 2011 $ 5,317,006 $ 34,981 2.63 % 0.26 % 0.68 % (0.42 %) 2.37 % 1.95 %
For the
quarter
ended
September
30, 2011 $ 6,390,222 $ 37,292 2.33 % 0.21 % 0.47 % (0.26 %) 2.12 % 1.86 %

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on
interest rate swaps.

Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 was $128.1 million and net income per basic and diluted
share was $0.12.  Our net loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 was $60.0 million and net loss per basic and
diluted share was $0.06. Net income increased by $188.1 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 as
compared to September 30, 2011.  The increase in net income and our net income per share for the quarter ended
September 30, 2012 as compared to September 30, 2011 is attributable to fewer impairment losses and increased
realized gains on sales of investments in the current period.  These increases were offset in part by declining net
interest income, primarily from a decline in Agency RMBS assets quarter over quarter and higher financing costs of
securitized debt collateralized by loans.
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Our net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $249.1 million and earnings per basic and diluted
share was $0.24. Our net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was $94.6 million and earnings per
basic and diluted share were $0.09. Our net income was generated primarily by interest income on our portfolio.  Net
income increased by $154.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 as compared to September 30,
2011.  The increase in net income and our net income per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 as
compared to September 30, 2011 is attributable to fewer impairment losses and increased realized gains on sales of
investments in the quarter ended September 30, 2012.  These increases were offset in part by declining net interest
income, primarily from a decline in Agency RMBS assets in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to
the prior period.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, we recognized approximately $10.0 million
and $150.6 million of net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses in earnings related to Non-Agency RMBS as
fair values and the present value of cash flows expected to be collected were below amortized cost. The decrease in
OTTI is attributable to improving fair values as well as favorable changes in cash flows expected to be collected.  The
favorable change in cash flows is mainly attributable to improvements in expected cash flow of our Non-Agency
RMBS, and increasing prepayment speeds, which result in an increase in the present value of cash flows expected to
be collected.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, we recognized approximately $124.1
million and $245.9 million of net other-than-temporary credit impairment losses in earnings related to Non-Agency
RMBS as fair values and the present value of cash flows expected continue to show improvements over the prior
period.

Other-than-temporary impairment charges, which were recognized on Non-Agency RMBS, reflect changes in our
estimate of the extent and timing of cash flows expected to be collected that reflect consideration of the estimated
future performance of the underlying collateral, including the expected principal loss over the term of the security. At
September 30, 2012, we had a gross unrealized loss of $383 thousand related to Agency RMBS and a gross unrealized
loss of $40.3 million related to Non-Agency RMBS.  Impairments on Agency RMBS in an unrealized loss position at
September 30, 2012 are considered temporary and not credit related. Unrealized losses on Non-Agency RMBS for
which no OTTI was recorded during the quarter are considered temporary based on an estimate of the cash flows
expected to be collected for such RMBS, which considers recent bond performance and expected future performance
of the underlying collateral. Significant judgment is used in estimating both our cash flows expected to be collected
for its Non-Agency RMBS and the credit component of OTTI.  Refer to “Significant Accounting Policies” in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements for more information regarding the recognition of OTTI.

The table below presents the net income (loss) summary for the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2012
and 2011.
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Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousands)

For the Quarter Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September
30, 2012

September 30,
2011

September 30,
2012

September 30,
2011

Net Interest Income:
Interest income $ 36,576 $ 68,776 $ 139,926 $ 197,718
Interest expense (2,281 ) (3,149 ) (7,080 ) (9,160 )

Interest income, Assets of
consolidated VIEs 108,120 116,805 315,962 339,765
Interest expense, Non-recourse
liabilities of VIEs (32,075 ) (29,643 ) (85,604 ) (95,002 )
Net interest income (expense) 110,340 152,789 363,204 433,321
Other-than-temporary
impairments:
Total other-than-temporary
impairment losses (2,713 ) (78,950 ) (47,264 ) (161,924 )
Portion of loss recognized in
other comprehensive income
(loss) (7,301 ) (71,610 ) (76,801 ) (83,989 )
Net other-than-temporary credit
impairment losses (10,014 ) (150,560 ) (124,065 ) (245,913 )
Other gains (losses):
Unrealized gains (losses) on
interest rate swaps (4,427 ) (25,312 ) (14,607 ) (34,981 )
Realized gains (losses) on interest
rate swaps (5,298 ) (4,500 ) (14,890 ) (11,644 )
Gains (losses) on interest rate
swaps (9,725 ) (29,812 ) (29,497 ) (46,625 )
Net unrealized gains (losses) on
interest-only RMBS (15,393 ) (17,600 ) 22 (1,611 )
Realized gains (losses) on sales of
investments, net 69,155 58 85,165 1,787
Total other gains (losses) 44,037 (47,354 ) 55,690 (46,449 )
Net investment income (loss) 144,363 (45,125 ) 294,829 140,959
Other expenses:
Management fees 13,051 13,252 38,863 39,154
Expense recoveries from Manager (1,910 ) - (1,910 ) -
Net Management fees 11,141 13,252 36,953 39,154
Provision for loan losses, net 496 - (396 ) 1,442
General and administrative
expenses 4,658 1,830 9,188 5,137
Total other expenses 16,295 15,082 45,745 45,733
Income (loss) before income
taxes 128,068 (60,207 ) 249,084 95,226
Income taxes - (171 ) 2 645
Net income (loss) $ 128,068 $ (60,036 ) $ 249,082 $ 94,581
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Economic Net Interest Income

Our economic net interest income, which equals interest income excluding interest earned on cash and cash
equivalents less interest expense and realized losses on interest rate swaps, totaled $105.0 million and $148.3 million
for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and $348.3 million and $421.7
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  Our net interest spread,
which equals the yield on our average assets for the period less the economic average cost of funds for the period, was
1.07% and 3.96% for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and 2.52% and
3.63% for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  We attribute the decline
in economic net interest income in 2012 compared to 2011 to an increase in our cost of funds as a result of higher
interest expense on securitized debt collateralized by loans held for investment and an increase in LIBOR year over
year.

The table below shows our average earning assets held, total interest earned on assets, yield on average interest
earning assets, average debt balance, economic interest expense (including the effect of realized losses on interest rate
swaps), average cost of funds, economic net interest income, and net interest rate spread for the periods presented.

Economic Net Interest Income

Average
Earning
Assets

Held (1)

Interest
Earned

on
Assets (1)

  Yield
on
Average
Interest
Earning
Assets

Average
Debt

Balance

Economic
Interest
Expense

(2)

Economic
Average

Cost
of

Funds

Economic
Net

Interest
Income (1)

(2)

Net
Interest

Rate
Spread

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)
For the
quarter
ended
September
30, 2012 $ 12,366,202 $ 144,692 4.68 % $ 4,397,212 $ 39,654 3.61 % $ 105,038 1.07 %
For the
quarter
ended
June 30,
2012 $ 9,898,151 $ 161,522 6.53 % $ 4,718,431 $ 27,147 2.30 % $ 134,375 4.23 %
For the
quarter
ended
March 31,
2012 $ 9,664,096 $ 149,665 6.19 % $ 4,358,333 $ 40,773 3.74 % $ 108,892 2.45 %
For the
year ended
December
31, 2011 $ 11,438,442 $ 705,010 6.16 % $ 5,989,117 $ 150,787 2.52 % $ 554,223 3.64 %
For the
quarter
ended
December
31, 2011 $ 10,636,688 $ 167,540 6.30 % $ 5,317,006 $ 34,981 2.63 % $ 132,559 3.67 %
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For the
quarter
ended
September
30, 2011 $ 11,803,044 $ 185,581 6.29 % $ 6,390,222 $ 37,292 2.33 % $ 148,289 3.96 %

(1) Excludes cash and cash
equivalents.
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interest
rate swaps.
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Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, we sold RMBS (primarily Agency RMBS) with a carrying value of
$795.1 million for realized gains of $69.2 million. During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, we sold RMBS with
a carrying value of $2.3 million for realized gains of $58 thousand. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, we sold RMBS with a carrying value of $858.2 million and $669.1 million for realized gains
of $85.2 million and $1.8 million, respectively. The increase in sales during the quarter was to reduce leverage in the
portfolio, improve liquidity and take advantage of market conditions to realize gains in the portfolio.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we financed the purchase of $1.2 billion of jumbo prime whole
loans by securitizing and selling senior bonds to third party investors for net proceeds of $1.1 billion. We retained the
subordinate tranches of the securitizations.  We did not re-securitize RMBS or jumbo prime whole loans during the
quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Expenses

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $13.1 million and $13.3 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, respectively, and $38.9 million and $39.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, respectively.  The management fee is based on our stockholders’ equity as defined in the
investment management agreement.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses were $4.7 million and $1.8 million for the quarters ended September
30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and $9.2 million and $5.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  Our G&A expenses increased primarily due to servicing
fees associated with the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2 securitizations.

Our Manager has agreed to pay all past and future expenses that we and/or our Audit Committee incur to: (1) evaluate
our accounting policy related to the application of GAAP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2)
restate our financial statements for the period covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”); and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholder derivative demands arising from the Evaluation
and/or the Restatement Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however, that our Manager’s obligation to pay expenses
applies only to expenses not paid by our insurers under our insurance policies.  Expenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respect to auditors (to the extent such fees and costs exceed our originally
estimated audit fees of $542,400), outside counsel, and consultants engaged by us and/or our Audit Committee for the
Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigation. The amount paid by our Manager related to these expenses for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 is $1.9 million, respectively, and is presented on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as Expense recoveries from Manager.

Total Management fee and G&A expenses as a percentage of average total assets were 0.80% and 0.61% for the
quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and 0.80% and 0.66% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.

We reimburse FIDAC for our pro rata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, office furniture, equipment, machinery and
other office, internal and overhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates required for our operations.  During the
quarter ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, we reimbursed FIDAC approximately $105 thousand and
$166 thousand for such expenses, respectively.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30,
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2011, we reimbursed FIDAC approximately $345 thousand and $482 thousand for such expenses, respectively.
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The table below shows our total management fee, and G&A expenses as compared to average total assets and average
equity for the periods presented.

Management Fees, G&A Expenses and Operating Expense Ratios

Total
Management
Fee and G&A

Expenses

Total
Management
Fee and G&A

Expenses/Total
Assets

Total
Management
Fee and G&A

Expenses/Average
Equity

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)
For the quarter ended September 30,
2012 $ 15,799 0.80 % 1.92 %
For the quarter ended June 30, 2012 $ 15,444 0.75 % 1.95 %
For the quarter ended March 31, 2012 $ 14,898 0.74 % 1.92 %
For the year ended December 31,
2011 $ 59,236 0.75 % 1.76 %
For the quarter ended December 31,
2011 $ 14,945 0.68 % 1.87 %
For the quarter ended September 30,
2011 $ 15,082 0.61 % 1.78 %

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $128.1 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and our net loss was $60.0 million for
the quarter ended September 30, 2011, respectively.  Our net income was $249.1 million and $94.6 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.  The table below shows our economic
net interest income, realized gains (losses) on sale of assets and the credit related OTTI, realized and unrealized gains
(losses) on interest rate swaps and IOs, total management fee and G&A expenses, and income tax, each as a
percentage of average equity, and the return on average equity for the periods presented. Our return on average equity
increased from (7.08%) for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 to 15.53% for the quarter ended September 30,
2012 and from 3.59% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 to 10.27% for the nine months ended September
30, 2012 primarily due to a decline in losses related to OTTI and increase in realized gains on sales of investments,
offset in part by lower economic net interest income.

Components of Return on Average Equity

Economic
Net

Interest
Income/Average

Equity *

Realized
Gains

(Losses)
on

Sales and
OTTI/Average

Equity

Realized
and

Unrealized
Gains

(Losses)
on

Interest
Rate

Swaps
and

IOs/Average
Equity

Total
Management

Fee &
G&A

Expenses/Average
Equity

Income
Tax

Benefit/Average
Equity

Return
on

Average
Equity

(Ratios have been annualized)

Edgar Filing: CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORP - Form 10-Q

104



For the quarter
ended
September 30,
2012 12.74 % 7.11 % (2.40 %) (1.92 %) 0.00 % 15.53 %
For the quarter
ended June 30,
2012 16.93 % (8.14 %) (1.70 %) (1.95 %) 0.00 % 5.14 %
For the quarter
ended March
31, 2012 14.01 % (4.18 %) 2.41 % (1.92 %) 0.00 % 10.32 %
For the year
ended
December 31,
2011 16.47 % (9.16 %) (1.46 %) (1.76 %) (0.02 %) 4.08 %
For the quarter
ended
December 31,
2011 16.59 % (7.82 %) (1.55 %) (1.87 %) 0.00 % 5.35 %
For the quarter
ended
September 30,
2011 17.49 % (17.75 %) (5.06 %) (1.78 %) 0.02 % (7.08 %)

* Includes the effect of
realized losses on interest rate
swaps

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requirements, including ongoing commitments to repay our borrowings,
purchase RMBS, mortgage loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay dividends and other general business needs. 
Our principal sources of capital and funds for additional investments primarily include earnings from our investments,
borrowings under securitizations and re-securitizations, repurchase agreements and other financing facilities, and
proceeds from equity offerings. 

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidity needs, we expect to continue to borrow funds in the form of
repurchase agreements and, subject to market conditions, other types of financing.  The terms of the repurchase
transaction borrowings under our master repurchase agreements generally conform to the terms in the standard master
repurchase agreement as published by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to
repayment, margin requirements and the segregation of all securities we have initially sold under the repurchase
transaction.  In addition, each lender typically requires that we include supplemental terms and conditions to the
standard master repurchase agreement.  Typical supplemental terms and conditions include changes to the margin
maintenance requirements, cross default provisions, required haircuts (or the percentage that is subtracted from the
value of RMBS that collateralizes the financing), purchase price maintenance requirements, and requirements that all
disputes related to the repurchase agreement be litigated or arbitrated in a particular jurisdiction.  These provisions
may differ for each of our lenders. 
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We also expect to meet our short term liquidity needs by relying on the cash flows generated by our investments. 
These cash flows are primarily comprised of monthly principal and interest payments received on our investments. 
We may also sell our investments and utilize those proceeds to meet our short term liquidity needs or enter into
non-recourse financing of our assets through sales of securities to third parties of re-securitization transactions that we
have completed in prior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio and available borrowing arrangements, we believe our assets will be
sufficient to enable us to meet anticipated short-term liquidity requirements.  However, a decline in the value of our
collateral could cause a temporary liquidity shortfall due to the timing of margin calls on the financing arrangements
and the actual receipt of the cash related to principal paydowns. If our cash resources are at any time insufficient to
satisfy our liquidity requirements, we may have to sell investments, potentially at a loss, or issue debt or additional
equity securities in a common stock offering.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greater than one year), we expect our principal sources of capital and funds
to continue to be provided by earnings from our investments, borrowings under securitizations and re-securitizations,
repurchase agreements and other financing facilities, as well as proceeds from equity offerings.  As a result of our
failure to file our SEC filings by the filing date required by the SEC (including the grace period permitted by Rule
12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we are not eligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing Form S-3 registration statements to raise additional equity capital until
filings with the SEC have been timely made for a full year.  Our ineligibility to use Form S-3 during this time period
will have a negative impact on our ability to quickly access the public capital markets because we would be required
to file a long-form registration statement and wait for the SEC to declare such registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capital described above, we may enter into warehouse facilities, use commercial
paper, term financing CDOs, and longer dated structured repurchase agreements.  The use of any particular source of
capital and funds will depend on market conditions, availability of these facilities, and the investment opportunities
available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approximately $458.1 million and $206.3 million at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of approximately $271.7 million and $340.7 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. The cash provided by operating activities decreased
for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 when compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2011 due
primarily to a decrease in economic net interest income earned on the portfolio of $73.4 million.

Our investing activities provided net cash of approximately $880.3 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2012 and resulted in the net use of cash of approximately $2.0 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2011,
respectively.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 we generated cash from sales of RMBS investments
of $943.4 million and principal payments of $1.2 billion related to all our investment assets offset by purchases of
$1.2 billion in jumbo prime whole loans.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011 we utilized cash to
purchase $3.7 billion in securities which was offset by proceeds from asset sales of $670.9 million and principal
payments of $1.0 billion related to all our assets.  In 2011, we used cash in investing activities and in 2012 cash was
provided by investing activities as we had a significant decline in purchases of RMBS securities from the prior year.

Our financing activities resulted in the net use of cash of approximately $900.2 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and provided net cash of approximately $1.6 billion for the nine months ended September 30,
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2011, respectively.  The nine months ended September 30, 2012 reflected net payments on repurchase agreements of
$1.0 billion as compared to net proceeds from repurchase agreements of $2.4 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011. In addition, the nine months ended September 30, 2012 reflected net proceeds from securitized
debt borrowings of $1.1 billion associated with the issuance of debt in the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2
securitization trusts, as compared to net proceeds from securitized debt borrowings of $311.0 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011.
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We expect to continue to finance our RMBS portfolio largely through repurchase agreements and loans through the
securitization market. In addition, we may from time to time sell securities as a source of cash to fund new purchases.

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the remaining maturities on our RMBS repurchase agreements were
as follows.

September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

(dollars in thousands)
Overnight $ 35,430 $ -
1-29 days 1,130,037 1,368,945
30 to 59 days 144,595 836,007
60 to 89 days - -
90 to 119 days 35,475 171,836
Greater than or equal to 120
days 313,369 296,201
Total $ 1,658,906 $ 2,672,989

We collateralize the repurchase agreements we use to finance our operations with Agency RMBS.  Our counterparties
negotiate a ‘haircut’ when we enter into a financing transaction, which vary from lender to lender.  The size of the
haircut reflects the perceived risk associated with holding the RMBS by the lender.  The haircut provides lenders with
a cushion for daily market value movements that reduce the need for a margin call to be issued or margin to be
returned as normal daily increases or decreases in RMBS values occur.  At September 30, 2012, the weighted average
haircut on our repurchase agreements was 5%. Despite the haircut, repurchase agreements subject us to two types of
margin calls. First, there are monthly margin calls that are triggered as principal payments and pre-payments are
received by us as these payments lower the value of the collateral.  As a result, we expect to receive margin calls from
our repurchase counterparties monthly simply due to the principal paydowns on our Agency RMBS. The monthly
principal payments and pre-payments are not known in advance and vary depending on the behavior of the borrowers
related to the underlying mortgages. Second, counterparties make margin calls or return margin as a result of normal
daily increases or decreases in asset values.  In addition, when financing assets using standard form of SIFMA Master
Repurchase Agreements, the counterparty to the agreement typically nets its exposure to us on all outstanding
repurchase agreements and issues margin calls if movement of the asset values in the aggregate exceeds their
allowable exposure to us.  A decline in asset values could create a margin call, or may create no margin call depending
on the counterparty’s specific policy.  In addition, counterparties consider a number of factors, including their
aggregate exposure to us as a whole and the number of days remaining before the repurchase transaction closes prior
to issuing a margin call. See Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion on how we determine
the fair values of the RMBS collateralizing our repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average repurchase balance and repurchase balance at each period end for the periods
presented.  Our balance at period-end tends to have little fluctuation from the average balances except in periods
where we are adjusting the size of our portfolio by using leverage.  Our repurchase agreement balance at September
30, 2012 decreased compared to our average repurchase agreement balance for the quarter ended December 31, 2011
due to sales of Agency RMBS during the fourth quarter of 2011.

Period

Average
Repurchase

Balance

Repurchase Balance
at

Period End
(dollars in thousands)

$ 1,954,958 $ 1,658,906
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Quarter Ended
September 30, 2012
Quarter Ended June 30,
2012 $ 2,412,827 $ 2,362,088
Quarter Ended March
31, 2012 $ 2,554,295 $ 2,502,870
Year Ended December
31, 2011 $ 3,843,683 $ 2,672,989
Quarter Ended
December 31, 2011 $ 3,379,539 $ 2,672,989
Quarter Ended
September 30, 2011 $ 4,301,251 $ 4,171,190

We are not required to maintain any specific debt-to-equity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverage for the
particular assets we are financing depends on the credit quality and risk of those assets.  At September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 our total debt was approximately $3.9 billion and $4.5 billion, which represented a debt-to-equity
ratio of approximately 1.2:1 and 1.5:1, respectively.  We include repurchase agreements and securitized debt in the
numerator of our debt-to-equity ratio and stockholders’ equity as the denominator.
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We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-designated amount of borrowings at quarter-end or year-end.  Our
borrowings at period end are a snapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this number should be expected to differ from
average borrowings over the period.  Our borrowings will change as we implement our portfolio and risk management
strategies to address changing market conditions by increasing or decreasing leverage.  Our borrowings may change
during periods when we raise capital, and in certain instances we may purchase additional assets and increase
borrowings prior to an expected capital raise.  Since our average borrowings and period end borrowings can be
expected to differ, we believe our average borrowings during a period provides a more accurate representation of our
exposure to the risks associated with leverage.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equity distribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securities LLC, or
UBS.  Through this agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our sales agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of our
common stock in ordinary brokers’ transactions at market prices or other transactions as agreed between us and
UBS.  We did not sell any shares of our common stock under the equity distribution agreement during the quarters
ended September 30, 2012 or September 30, 2011. As a result of our failure to file our SEC filings by the filing date
required by the SEC (including the grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended), we will not be able to issue shares of our common stock under the equity distribution agreement until
filings with the SEC have been timely made for a full year.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan, or DRSPP.  The DRSPP
provided holders of record of our common stock an opportunity to automatically reinvest all or a portion of their cash
distributions received on common stock in additional shares of our common stock as well as to make optional cash
payments to purchase shares of our common stock.  The DRSPP was administered by the Administrator,
Computershare. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 we raised $117 thousand by issuing 39,000 shares
through the DRSPP.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011 we raised $786 thousand by issuing 214,000
shares through the DRSPP.  The DRSPP was suspended when we were no longer current on our filings.  As a result of
our failure to file our SEC filings by the filing date required by the SEC (including the grace period permitted by Rule
12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we will not be able to issue shares of our DRSPP
until filings with the SEC have been timely made for a full year.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 we declared dividends to common shareholders totaling $92.4 million,
or $0.09 per share.  During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, we declared dividends to common shareholders
totaling $133.4 million, or $0.13 per share.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 we declared dividends to common shareholders totaling $297.8
million, or $0.29 per share.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we declared dividends to common
shareholders totaling $410.5 million, or $0.40 per share.

The Board of Directors has initiated a regular quarterly dividend of $0.09 per common share for the fourth quarter of
2012, and for each quarter of 2013.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstanding as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Related Party Transactions

The Management Agreement
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On November 15, 2007 we entered into a management agreement with FIDAC, which provided for an initial term
through December 31, 2010 with an automatic one-year extension option and subject to certain termination
rights.  The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors renewed the management agreement through
December 31, 2013.  In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Manager a quarterly management fee equal to 1.50% per
annum of our gross Stockholders’ Equity (as defined in the management agreement).  Effective November 28, 2012,
the management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annum of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reduction will remain in
effect until we are current on all of our filings required under applicable securities laws.
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We are obligated to reimburse our Manager for its costs incurred under the management agreement.  In addition, the
management agreement permits our Manager to require us to pay for its pro rata portion of rent, telephone, utilities,
office furniture, equipment, machinery and other office, internal and overhead expenses that our Manager incurred in
connection with our operations.  These expenses are allocated between our Manager and us based on the ratio of the
proportion of gross assets compared to the gross assets managed by our Manager as calculated at each quarter end.
Together we will modify this allocation methodology, subject to the approval of our board of directors if the allocation
becomes inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly leveraged compared to our Manager’s other funds and accounts).

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreement

Because of the Restatement, we amended the management agreement on March 8, 2013.  In the amendment, we
memorialized the reduction in the management fee.  Additionally, our Manager agreed to pay all past and future
expenses that we and/or our Audit Committee incur to: (1) evaluate our  accounting policy related to the application of
GAAP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the Evaluation); (2) restate our financial statements for the period
covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the Restatement Filing); and (3) investigate and evaluate
any shareholder derivative demands arising from the Evaluation and/or the Restatement Filing (the Investigation);
provided, however, that our Manager’s obligation to pay expenses applies only to expenses not paid by our insurers
under our insurance policies.  Expenses shall include, without limitation, fees and costs incurred with respect to
auditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged by us and/or our Audit Committee for the Evaluation, Restatement
Filing and the Investigation.

The amendment also provides that the independent directors or the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
common stock (other than those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elect to terminate the management agreement
upon 30 days notice at any time in their sole discretion without the payment of a termination fee.  Additionally, we
may terminate the management agreement effective immediately if (i) our Manager engages in any act of fraud,
misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement against the us, (ii) there is an event of any gross negligence on the part of
our Manager in the performance of its duties under the management agreement, (iii) there is a commencement of any
proceeding relating to our Manager’s bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissolution of our Manager, or (v) our
Manager is convicted of (including a plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreement

For the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, our Manager earned management fees of $13.1
million and $13.3 million and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, our Manager
earned management fees of $38.9 million and $39.2 million, respectively and received expense reimbursements of
$105 thousand and $166 thousand and $345 thousand and $482 thousand, respectively.  From our inception through
2009, our Manager waived its right to require us to pay our pro rata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other office, internal and overhead expenses of our Manager and its affiliates
required for our operations.

Our Manager uses the proceeds from its management fee in part to pay compensation to its officers and employees
who, notwithstanding that certain of them also are our officers, receive no cash compensation directly from us.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administrative services agreement with RCap Securities, Inc., or RCap.  We use
RCap, a SEC registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly, to clear trades for us and RCap is
paid customary fees in return for such services. RCap may also provide brokerage services to us from time to
time.  During the quarter ended and nine months September 30, 2012, fees paid to RCap were $41 thousand and $115
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thousand, respectively.  During the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2011, fees paid to RCap $58
thousand and $113 thousand, respectively.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stock to our Manager’s employees and members of our board of directors on
January 2, 2008.  During the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, 31,600 shares of restricted
stock we had awarded to our Manager’s employees vested and of those vested shares 217 and 226 shares were
forfeited, respectively.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, 94,800 shares of
restricted stock we had awarded to our Manager’s employees vested and of those vested shares 598 and 1,726 shares
were forfeited, respectively.  We did not grant any incentive awards during the quarter and nine months ended
September 30, 2012.  At September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 there were approximately 664,000 and 790,000
unvested shares of restricted stock issued to employees of FIDAC, respectively.  For the quarter ended September 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, compensation expense associated with the amortization of the fair value of the
restricted stock was approximately $75 thousand and $112 thousand, respectively.  For the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, compensation expense associated with the amortization of the fair value of the
restricted stock was approximately $242 thousand and $360 thousand, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual obligations at September 30, 2012.  The estimated principal
repayment schedule of the securitized debt is based on expected cash flows of the residential mortgage loans or
RMBS, as adjusted for actual on the underlying collateral of the debt.

September 30, 2012

Contractual
Obligations

Within One
Year

One to
Three
Years

Three to
Five

Years

Greater
Than

or Equal to
Five Years Total

(dollars in thousands)
Repurchase
agreements for
RMBS $ 1,658,906 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,658,906
Securitized debt 640,029 737,935 388,354 454,842 2,221,160
Interest expense on
RMBS repurchase
agreements (1) 3,740 5 - - 3,745
Interest expense on
securitized debt (1) 88,811 111,475 68,807 193,202 462,295
Total $ 2,391,486 $ 849,415 $ 457,161 $ 648,044 $ 4,346,106
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in
effect as of September 30, 2012.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred
to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating
off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.  Further, we have not guaranteed
any obligations of unconsolidated entities nor do we have any commitment or intent to provide funding to any such
entities.

Capital Requirements

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had no material commitments for capital expenditures.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividends to our stockholders of at least 90% of our taxable income
(subject to certain adjustments). We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to our stockholders. To insure liquidity
is adequate, debt service and operating needs are satisfied before declaring dividends.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive in nature. As a result, interest rates and
other factors influence our performance far more so than does inflation. Changes in interest rates do not necessarily
correlate with inflation rates or changes in inflation rates. Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with GAAP and our distributions will be determined by our board of directors consistent with our
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obligation to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, our activities and financial condition are measured with reference to
historical cost and/or fair market value without considering inflation.
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Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our business so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the
1940 Act.  If we were to become regulated as an investment company, our ability to use leverage would be
substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issuer that is engaged or
proposes to engage in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities and owns or
proposes to acquire investment securities having a value exceeding 40% of the value of the issuer’s total assets
(exclusive of U.S. Government securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis (the “40% test”). Excluded from
the term “investment securities,” among other things, are securities issued by majority-owned subsidiaries that rely on
the exemption from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Asset Holding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we may form in the
future, rely on the exemption from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company
Act.  Section 3(c)(5)(C), as interpreted by the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEC), requires
us to invest at least 55% of our assets in “mortgages and other liens on and interest in real estate” (or Qualifying Real
Estate Assets) and at least 80% of our assets in Qualifying Real Estate Assets plus real estate related assets.  The
assets that we acquire, therefore, are limited by the provisions of and the rules and regulations promulgated under the
Investment Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept release titled “Companies Engaged in the Business of Acquiring
Mortgages and Mortgage-Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778).  Under the concept release, the SEC is
reviewing interpretive issues related to the Section 3(c)(5)(C) exemption.  We are monitoring developments related to
this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with the
exemption from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are related to credit risk, interest rate risk, prepayment risk, market value
risk and real estate risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, we believe risk can be quantified from
monitoring the current market environment as well as economic forecasts.  We seek to actively manage that risk, to
earn sufficient compensation to justify taking those risks and to maintain capital levels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with our investments in Non-Agency RMBS and residential whole loans
and face more credit risk on assets we own which are rated below ‘‘AAA’’. The credit risk related to these investments
pertains to the ability and willingness of the borrowers to pay, which is assessed before credit is granted or renewed
and periodically reviewed throughout the loan or security term. We believe that residual loan credit quality, and thus
the quality of our assets, is primarily determined by the borrowers’ credit profiles and loan characteristics. We use a
comprehensive credit review process. Our analysis of loans includes borrower profiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors such as liquid assets, low loan to value ratios and regional unemployment
statistics in evaluating loans.  Our resources include a proprietary portfolio management system, as well as third party
software systems. We may utilize a third party due diligence firm to perform an independent underwriting review to
ensure compliance with existing guidelines. In addition to statistical sampling techniques, we create adverse credit and
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valuation samples, which we individually review. We reject loans that fail to conform to our standards and do not
meet our underwriting criteria. Once we own a loan, our surveillance process includes ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionally, the Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for our
portfolio are reviewed by us to ensure that they satisfy our risk based criteria. Our review of Non-Agency RMBS and
other ABS includes utilizing its proprietary portfolio management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMBS and
other ABS is based on quantitative and qualitative analysis of the risk-adjusted returns on Non-Agency RMBS and
other ABS.  This analysis includes an evaluation of the collateral characteristics supporting the RMBS such as
borrower payment history, credit profiles, geographic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoning, and other
pertinent factors.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental, monetary and tax policies, domestic and
international economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control. We are subject to interest
rate risk in connection with our investments and our related debt obligations, which are generally repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitization/re-securitization, commercial paper and term financing CDOs. Our
repurchase agreements and warehouse facilities may be of limited duration that are periodically refinanced at current
market rates. We intend to mitigate this risk through utilization of derivative contracts, primarily interest rate swap
agreements, swaptions, futures and mortgage options.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, on differences between the income from our investments and our
borrowing costs. Most of our warehouse facilities and repurchase agreements provide financing based on a floating
rate of interest calculated on a fixed spread over LIBOR. The fixed spread varies depending on the type of underlying
asset which collateralizes the financing. Accordingly, the portion of our portfolio which consists of floating interest
rate assets will be match-funded utilizing our expected sources of short-term financing, while our fixed interest rate
assets will not be match-funded. During periods of rising interest rates, the borrowing costs associated with our
investments tend to increase while the income earned on our fixed interest rate investments may remain substantially
unchanged. This will result in a narrowing of the net interest spread between the related assets and borrowings and
may even result in losses. Further, during this portion of the interest rate and credit cycles, defaults could increase and
result in credit losses to us, which could adversely affect our liquidity and operating results. Such delinquencies or
defaults could also have an adverse effect on the spread between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumed levels of prepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate
mortgage loans and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster than assumed, the life of the mortgage loans and
RMBS will be longer or shorter, which would reduce the effectiveness of any hedging strategies we may use and may
cause losses on such transactions.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is the effect changes in interest rates will have on the fair value of the assets
we acquire. We face the risk that the fair value of our assets will increase or decrease at different rates than that of our
liabilities, including our hedging instruments. We primarily assess our interest rate risk by estimating the duration of
our assets and the duration of our liabilities. Duration essentially measures the market price volatility of financial
instruments as interest rates change. We generally calculate duration using various financial models and current
market information. Different models and methodologies can produce different durations for the same securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changing interest rates on fair value can change significantly when interest
rates change beyond 100 basis points from current levels. Therefore, the volatility in the fair value of our assets could
increase significantly when interest rates change beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factors impact the fair
value of our interest rate-sensitive investments and hedging instruments, such as the shape of the yield curve, market
expectations as to future interest rate changes and other market conditions. Accordingly, in the event of changes in
actual interest rates, the change in the fair value of our assets would likely differ and such difference may be material
to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which the underlying
mortgages are typically subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate caps and floors, which limit the amount by which
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the security’s interest yield may change during any given period. However, our borrowing costs pursuant to our
financing agreements will not be subject to similar restrictions. Therefore, in a period of increasing interest rates,
interest rate costs on our borrowings could increase without limitation by caps, while the interest-rate yields on our
adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS may effectively be limited. This problem will be magnified to the extent
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgages which are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgages
or the underlying mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps. This could result in our receipt of
less coupon income on our adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS than we need in order to pay the interest cost on our
related borrowings. These factors could lower our net interest income or cause a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which could have a negative effect on our financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.
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Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitions of RMBS with borrowings that, after the effect of hedging, have
interest rates based on indices and re-pricing terms similar to, but of somewhat shorter maturities than, the interest rate
indices and re-pricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indices and re-pricing terms
of our mortgage assets and our funding sources will not be identical, thereby creating an interest rate mismatch
between assets and liabilities. Our cost of funds would likely rise or fall more quickly than would our earnings rate on
assets. During periods of changing interest rates, such interest rate mismatches could negatively impact our financial
condition, cash flows and results of operations. To mitigate interest rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedging
strategies discussed above. Our analysis of risks is based on FIDAC’s experience, estimates, models and assumptions.
These analyses rely on models which utilize estimates of fair value and interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic
conditions or implementation of investment decisions by our management may produce results that differ significantly
from the estimates and assumptions used in our models and the projected results shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolio (including the value of hedges) may be adversely affected during any
period as a result of changing interest rates.  The following table quantifies the potential changes in net interest
income and portfolio value solely as it relates to our Agency RMBS portfolio (including interest rate swap
hedges) should interest rates go up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuming parallel movements in the yield
curves.  All changes in income and value are measured as percentage changes from the projected net interest income
and portfolio value at the base interest rate scenario.  The base interest rate scenario assumes interest rates at
September 30, 2012. Estimates regarding prepayments and other activities are made at each level of rate
shock.  Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates.

September 30, 2012

Change in Interest Rate

Projected
Percentage

Change in Net
Interest
Income

Projected
Percentage

Change in Portfolio
Value

-75 Basis Points (3.72 %) 0.71 %
-50 Basis Points (2.55 %) 0.18 %
-25 Basis Points (1.26 %) (0.06 )%
Base Interest Rate - -
+25 Basis Points 1.16 % (0.19 %)
+50 Basis Points 2.24 % (0.30 %)
+75 Basis Points 3.38 % (0.44 %)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on these investments, premiums and discounts on such investments will be
amortized or accreted into interest income. In general, an increase in prepayment rates will accelerate the amortization
of purchase premiums, thereby reducing the interest income earned on the investments. Conversely, discounts on such
investments are accelerated and accreted into interest income increasing interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-average life of our investments based on assumptions regarding the
rate at which the borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgages. In general, when fixed-rate or hybrid
adjustable-rate mortgage loans or RMBS are acquired via borrowings, we may, but are not required to, enter into an
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interest rate swap agreement or other hedging instrument that effectively fixes our borrowing costs for a period close
to the anticipated average life of the fixed-rate portion of the related assets. This strategy is designed to protect us
from rising interest rates as the borrowing costs are effectively fixed for the duration of the fixed-rate portion of the
related assets.  However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rising interest rate environment, the life of the fixed-rate
portion of the related assets could extend beyond the term of the swap agreement or other hedging instrument. This
could have a negative impact on our results from operations, as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed after the end
of the hedging instrument while the income earned on the fixed and hybrid adjustable-rate assets would remain fixed.
In extreme situations, we may be forced to sell assets to maintain adequate liquidity, which could cause us to incur
losses.
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Market Risk

Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflected at their estimated fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded
from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income excluding IO RMBS which are recorded in earnings. The
estimated fair value of these securities fluctuates primarily due to changes in interest rates, prepayment speeds, market
liquidity, credit quality, and other factors.  Generally, in a rising interest rate environment, the estimated fair value of
these securities would be expected to decrease; conversely, in a decreasing interest rate environment, the estimated
fair value of these securities would be expected to increase.  As market volatility increases or liquidity decreases, the
fair value of our investments may be adversely impacted.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and may own real property directly in the future.  Residential property values
are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by a number of factors, including, but not limited to, national,
regional and local economic conditions (which may be adversely affected by industry slowdowns and other factors);
local real estate conditions (such as an oversupply of housing); changes or continued weakness in specific industry
segments; construction quality, age and design; demographic factors; natural disasters; and retroactive changes to
building or similar codes. In addition, decreases in property values reduce the value of the collateral and the potential
proceeds available to a borrower to repay our loans, which could also cause us to incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REIT status, we seek to manage risk exposure to protect our portfolio of
residential mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debt against the effects of major interest rate changes.
We generally seek to manage risk by:

● monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the reset index and interest rate related to our RMBS and our financings;

● attempting to structure our financing agreements to have a range of different maturities, terms, amortizations
and interest rate adjustment periods;

● using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, options, caps, floors and forward sales to adjust the interest rate
sensitivity of our investments and our borrowings;

● using securitization financing to lower average cost of funds relative to short-term financing vehicles further
allowing us to receive the benefit of attractive terms for an extended period of time in contrast to short term
financing and maturity dates of the investments not included in the securitization; and

● actively managing, on an aggregate basis, the interest rate indices, interest rate adjustment periods, and gross
reset margins of our investments and the interest rate indices and adjustment periods of our financings.

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilities are concerned with the timing and magnitude of the re-pricing of assets
and liabilities.  We attempt to control risks associated with interest rate movements.  Methods for evaluating interest
rate risk include an analysis of our interest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference  between interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities maturing or re-pricing within a given time period.  A gap is considered positive when
the amount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities.  A gap is
considered negative when the amount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities exceeds interest-rate sensitive assets.  During
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a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tend to adversely affect net interest income, while a positive gap
would tend to result in an increase in net interest income.  During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap
would tend to result in an increase in net interest income, while a positive gap would tend to affect net interest income
adversely.  Because different types of assets and liabilities with the same or similar maturities may react differently to
changes in overall market rates or conditions, changes in interest rates may affect net interest income positively or
negatively even if an institution were perfectly matched in each maturity category.
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The following table sets forth the estimated maturity or re-pricing of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities at September 30, 2012.  The amounts of assets and liabilities shown within a particular period were
determined in accordance with the contractual terms of the assets and liabilities, except adjustable-rate loans, and
securities are included in the period in which their interest rates are first scheduled to adjust and not in the period in
which they mature and does include the effect of the interest rate swaps.  The interest rate sensitivity of our assets and
liabilities in the table could vary substantially based on actual prepayments.

(dollars in thousands)

Within
3 Months 3-12 Months

1 Year to 3
Years

Greater than
3 Years Total

Rate sensitive
assets $ 1,184,101 $ 1,772,575 $ 1,218,984 $ 8,148,614 $ 12,324,274
Cash equivalents 458,107 - - - 458,107
Total rate
sensitive assets 1,642,208 1,772,575 1,218,984 8,148,614 12,782,381

Rate sensitive
liabilities 177,825 557,761 79,097 1,820,263 2,634,946
Interest rate
sensitivity gap $ 1,464,383 $ 1,214,814 $ 1,139,887 $ 6,328,351 $ 10,147,435

Cumulative rate
sensitivity gap $ 1,464,383 $ 2,679,197 $ 3,819,084 $ 10,147,435
Cumulative
interest rate
sensitivity gap as
a
percentage of
total rate
sensitive assets

11 % 21 % 30 % 79
%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager’s experience, estimates, models and assumptions.  These analyses rely on
models which utilize estimates of fair value and interest rate sensitivity.  Actual economic conditions or
implementation of investment decisions by our manager may produce results that differ significantly from the
estimates and assumptions used in our models and the projected results shown in the above tables and in this Form
10-Q.  These analyses contain certain forward-looking statements and are subject to the safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, we disclosed that management had
identified a material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting. As of December 31, 2011 we
determined that the design and operating effectiveness of controls over the selection, application and review of the
implementation of accounting policies to ensure amounts recorded and disclosed were fairly stated in accordance with
GAAP were insufficient. Specifically, we determined that our resources and level of technical accounting expertise
within the accounting function were insufficient to properly evaluate and account for the complexity of our
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investments in Non-Agency RMBS, Interest-Only Strips, impairment of securitized loans held for investment, and
related disclosures in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Additionally, although the
Restatement did not result in changes to historical estimates of the fair value of our investments in RMBS or our
estimates of the related cash flows expected to be collected that serve as a basis for our estimates of fair value and
income recognition, our review controls over significant estimates and the financial reporting process were not
designed precisely enough to prevent or detect a material misstatement. Specifically, there was no precise and direct
independent review and validation of inputs used in significant estimates such as the determination of the fair value,
impairment, or interest income related to our investments in RMBS and securitized loans held for investment. There
was also no evidence of an independent validation of calculations used in significant accounting estimates to ensure
the accounting policies were appropriately implemented. In addition, there was no evidence of review of the schedules
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements by a person, other than the preparer,
with the necessary competency and authority. As a result, income and other-than-temporary impairment related to
certain Non-Agency RMBS were materially misstated. This material weakness resulted in the Restatement.
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In response to the material weakness described above, during the fourth quarter of 2011, we engaged a leading
accounting firm to advise management with respect to accounting standards research support and engaged a leading
professional services organization specializing in accounting and reporting matters to aid management with key facets
of the Restatement.  During 2012 and 2013, we hired additional resources in accounting policy, middle office and
financial reporting roles, including technical accounting subject matter resources and a new Chief Financial Officer.

Additionally, we have been adding resources and processes to remediate the aforementioned material weakness
regarding the direct independent review and validation of inputs used in significant estimates such as the
determination of the fair value, impairment, or interest income related to our investments in RMBS and securitized
loans held for investment.  In addition to the adding of resources and the formalization of a middle office function, we
have engaged two additional independent pricing services to test and validate the models we use to value our
portfolio.  Growing the accounting policy, middle office and financial reporting group has increased the opportunity to
further segregate duties and improve the technical competency of the accounting function and improve our control
environment.

In addition, our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
identified the following additional issue related to our material weakness in internal control over financial
reporting.  Previously reported amounts in total OTTI losses and the non-credit portion of loss recognized in Other
comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income were reported
on a cumulative basis.  As discussed in our immaterial restatement disclosure in this Form 10-Q, the current
presentation reflects only that portion of total OTTI loss that is incremental for the reporting period giving
consideration to OTTI reported and recognized in prior periods. Accordingly, total OTTI losses and the portion of loss
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income was changed for the 2011 and 2012 periods presented, for comparability purposes.

As a result, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer determined that the aforementioned material
weaknesses in our internal controls over financial reporting were not remediated and that our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2012 and as of the date of this report. 

Based upon the substantial work performed during the Restatement process and the procedures performed through the
filing of this Form 10-Q, we have concluded that the consolidated financial statements for the periods covered by and
included in this Form 10-Q are prepared in accordance with GAAP and fairly present in all material respects, our
financial position, results of operation and cash flows for each of the periods presented herein.

Other than the changes discussed above, there have been no changes in our “internal control over financial reporting” (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) that occurred during the period
covered by this quarterly report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

PART II. Other Information

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statements for the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Committee of our Board
of Directors initiated an internal investigation, with the assistance of outside counsel and financial advisors engaged
by outside counsel, regarding the facts and circumstances relating to our accounting for Non-Agency RMBS and the
restatement of our financial statements.  This investigation is ongoing.
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Our Board of Directors has received three derivative demand letters alleging, among other things, that the directors
and our officers, as well as our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary duties to us by failing to institute adequate
internal controls and failing to ensure that we made accurate financial disclosures.  These letters request, among other
things, that the Board of Directors take action to investigate and remedy the alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. The
Audit Committee is currently reviewing the demand letters in connection with its ongoing investigation arising from
the restatement of our historical financial statements.  At the conclusion of its investigation, the Audit Committee will
make recommendations to the Board of Directors about an appropriate response to the letters.  At this time, we cannot
predict the outcome of the matters addressed in these shareholder demand letters.  These and other potential actions
that may be filed against us, whether with or without merit, may divert the attention of management from our
business, harm our reputation and otherwise may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.
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Item 1A.  Risk Factors

 Under “Part I — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, we set forth risk factors
related to (i) risks associated with the Restatement and related matters, (ii) risks associated with adverse developments
in the mortgage finance and credit markets, (iii) risks associated with our management and relationship with our
Manager, (iv) risks related to our business, (v) risks related to our investments, (vi) regulatory and legal risks, (vii)
risks related to our common stock, and (viii) tax risks.  You should carefully consider the risk factors set forth in our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.  As of the date hereof, there have been no material changes to the
risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Item 6.     Exhibits

Exhibits:

The exhibits required by this item are set forth on the Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimera Investment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-145525) filed on
September 27, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corporation  (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Report on
Form 8-K filed on May  28, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference)

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Report on
Form 8-K filed on November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 2 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-145525) filed on November 5, 2007
and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimera Investment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-145525) filed on
September 27, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference).

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Officer  of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Officer  of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibit 101.INS
XBRL

Instance Document **

Exhibit 101.SCH
XBRL

Taxonomy Extension Schema Document **

Exhibit 101.CAL
XBRL

Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **

Exhibit 101.DEF
XBRL

Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Created**

Exhibit 101.LAB
XBRL

Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

Exhibit 101.PRE
XBRL

Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document **

**           Submitted electronically herewith.  Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as
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of September 30, 2012 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2011 (derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements); (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the quarters and nine months
ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011; (iii) Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) for
the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By:  /s/ Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambiase
(Chief Executive Officer and President
and duly authorized officer of the registrant)

       Date: November 27, 2013

By:  /s/ Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan
(Chief Financial Officer
and principal financial officer of the
registrant)

       Date: November 27, 2013

S-1
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